
Create and execute continuing, cooperative and comprehensive regional long-range planning efforts that pro-
actively drive transportation decisions to improve safety, connectivity, economic development and quality of life in 

the Wilmington region. 

Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Board 

Meeting Agenda 

TO: Wilmington Urban Area MPO Board Members 
FROM: 
DATE:  

Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director 
February 20, 2020 

SUBJECT: February 26th meeting 

A meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area MPO Board will be held on Wednesday, February 26, 2020 at 3 
pm. The meeting will be held in the 6th Floor Conference Room at 320 Chestnut Street in downtown 
Wilmington. 

The following is the agenda for the meeting: 
1) Call to Order
2) Conflict of Interest Statement
3) Approval of Board Member Excused Absences
4) Approval of the Agenda
5) Public Comment Period
6) Presentation

a. Recognition of Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) members
7) Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes from January 22, 2020 (pgs. 3-9)
b. Resolution approving 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation

Improvement Program Administrative Modification #20-1 (pgs. 10-12)
c. Resolution supporting the WAVE Connect Advisory Committee’s

recommendations for the Award of the Section 5310 Community
Grant Project Funds (pgs. 13-15)

d. Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an Inter-local
Software Usage Agreement for the Rideshare Matching, Commute Calendar
& Incentive Software Contract  (pgs. 16-48)

8) Regular Agenda
a. Opening of the 30-day Public Comment Period for Cape Fear Moving

Forward 2045
b. Resolution authorizing the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning

Organization to apply for FY 2021 Transportation Demand Management
Program (TDM) Funding and Provide the Local Match (pg. 49-50)



2 

c. Resolution approving the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s FY 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (pgs. 51-68)

d. Resolution certifying the Transportation Planning Process for the Wilmington
Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (pg. 69)

e. Resolution supporting a cap on the Number of Participants and creating a day
of Registration Fee for the River to Sea Bike Ride (pg.70)

9) Discussion
a. STIP/Locally Administered Projects
b. 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement

Program Administrative Modification #20-2 (pgs.71-72)
c. Prioritization 6.0 Project Submittals (pgs.73-86)

10) Updates
a. Wilmington Urban Area MPO (pgs. 87-95)
b. Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority (pgs. 96-97)
c. NCDOT Division (pgs. 98-100)
d. NCDOT Transportation Planning Division (pgs. 101-102)

11) Announcements
a. NCDOT’s CSX Rail Upgrade Public Meetings- February 24th and 25th

b. NC Ethics Information Due- April 15th

12) Next meeting – March 25, 2020

Attachments 

• MPO Board Meeting Minutes- January 22, 2020
• Proposed 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program Administrative

Modification #20-1
• Resolution approving 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program

Administrative Modification #20-1
• Section 5310 Community Grant Project Funding Memo
• Resolution supporting the WAVE Connect Advisory Committee’s recommendations for the Award of the

Section 5310 Community Grant Project Funds
• Proposed Inter-local Software Usage Agreement for the Rideshare Matching, Commute Calendar & Incentive

Software Contract
• Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an Inter-local Software Usage Agreement for the

Rideshare Matching, Commute Calendar & Incentive Software Contract
• Resolution authorizing the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization to apply for FY 2021

Transportation Demand Management Program (TDM) Funding and Provide the Local Match
• Draft FY 2021 Unified Planning Work Program
• Resolution approving the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s FY 2021 Unified

Planning Work Program
• Resolution Certifying the Transportation Planning Process for the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan

Planning Organization
• Resolution supporting a cap on the number of participants and creating a day of Registration Fee for the River

to Sea Bike Ride
• Proposed 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program Administrative

Modification #20-2
• Prioritization 6.0 Project Submittal Memorandums
• Wilmington Urban Area MPO Project Update (February)
• Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority Update (February)
• NCDOT Division Project Update (February)
• NCDOT Transportation Planning Division Project Update (February)



 

 
 

 
MPO Board Meeting Minutes 

1st Floor Annex Conference Room, 305 Chestnut Street 
Wednesday, January 22, 2020 

 
Members Present 
David Piepmeyer, Pender County 
Pat Batleman, Town of Leland 
Neil Anderson, City of Wilmington 
Charlie Rivenbark, City of Wilmington 
Jonathan Barfield, Cape Fear Public 

Transportation Authority 
Charles Bost, Town of Belville 
LeAnn Pierce, Town of Carolina Beach 

Rob Zapple, New Hanover County 
Frank Williams, Brunswick County 
Eulis Willis, Town of Navassa 
 
Others Present 
Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director, WMPO 
Chad Kimes, NCDOT Highway Division 3 

 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Piepmeyer called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

2. Conflict of Interest Statement 
Chairman Piepmeyer read the conflict of interest statement and asked if any members had a 
conflict with any of the items on the meeting agenda.  No members reported having a conflict.  

3. Approval of Board Members’ Excused Absences 
Mr. Kozlosky stated that Mike Alford and Hank Miller have requested to be excused from the 
meeting.  He noted that John Ellen has indicated that he has an event in Kure Beach and will 
try to be here as soon as he can. 

Mr. Rivenbark made a motion to excuse the absences of Mr. Alford and Mr. Miller.  Mr. Willis 
seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously.   

4. Approval of the Agenda 
Mr. Rivenbark made a motion to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Mr. Williams, 
and the motion carried unanimously.   

5. Election of Officers 
Mr. Williams nominated David Piepmeyer for Chairman. Ms. Batleman seconded the 
nomination.  

There being no further nominations, Mr. Rivenbark made a motion to close the nominations and 
elect Mr. Piepmeyer as Chair.  Mr. Williams seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.  

Mr. Piepmeyer expressed appreciation and nominated Pat Batleman for Vice Chair.  
Mr. Rivenbark seconded the nomination.  

There being no further nominations, Chairman Piepmeyer closed the nominations.  The Board 
voted unanimously to elect Ms. Batleman as Vice Chair.  

6. Public Comment Period 
Mr. Bruce McLelland spoke to the Board regarding the proposed e-bike ordinance on page 55 of 
the agenda.  He noted that federal guidance on e-bikes in national parks allows their use for 
transportation or recreation anywhere a traditional bike can go; but no further.  Under the 

3



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 
January 22, 2020 

Consumer Safety Protection Act, e-bikes with two or three wheels, fully operational pedals and 
750-watt (one horsepower) or less are considered bicycles, and those producing more power
are considered motor vehicles.  He expressed concerns that the ordinance is adverse to
alternative transportation and neglects to address public safety, the environment and traffic
congestion.  He pointed out that 28% of e-bikes are purchased as a substitute for motor
vehicles, and that e-bikes increase the burden on law enforcement.  He also expressed
concerns regarding the meagerness of the bicycle helmet fine proposed.

Mr. Eric Hawthorne, residing at 19th Street and Market Street, spoke to the Board and 
expressed concerns regarding increased accidents on Market Street and the safety of children 
in that area.  He commented that cars drive up on the curb.  He also expressed concerns 
regarding the lack of police presence.   

Ms. Lydia Mincey spoke to the Board regarding funding for Market Street Road Diet, and 
requested increased prioritization for that project to make Carolina Place and Carolina Heights 
feel more residential than a cut-through.  She commented that walking on the sidewalk and 
crossing the street is unsafe in this area.  

Mr. Piepmeyer acknowledged new MPO Board members, New Hanover County Commissioner 
Rob Zapple, and Town of Carolina Beach Mayor LeAnn Pierce, each of whom expressed some 
brief words of appreciation.  

7. Presentations
a. “Be A Looker” Final Results – Nick Cannon, WMPO

Mr. Cannon gave an overview of results from the six-month “Be A Looker” campaign.
According to the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s (NCDOT) traffic crash
facts, Wilmington is ranked one of the most dangerous regions in the state of North
Carolina for bicyclists and pedestrians.  In 2017, there were more than 100 bicycle and
pedestrian collisions with motor vehicles, eleven of which were fatal. Over the past 10
years the WMPO region has made strides to improve bicycle and pedestrian policy and
infrastructure with such facilities as the Cross City Trail and Transportation Alternative
Set Aside – Direct Attributable (TASA-DA) funded projects. However, the culture shift
from a strictly car-centered one to a shared one is a long way off.

Mr. Cannon stated that the goals of the “Be A Looker” Campaign were to promote
bicycling and walking as legitimate forms of transportation and to educate participants on
the basic rules of the road for each of the modes.  The marketing campaign targeted
behaviors including motorists not looking or not yielding to bicyclists and pedestrians,
distracted driving, bicyclists riding on the wrong side of the road against traffic, not using
signals or not wearing helmets, and pedestrians not crossing at the crosswalk. He gave
an overview of strategies and results of the campaign as follows:

 Graphics external to two Wave Transit shuttles (Brunswick Connector,
#107 on S. College Rd.) - 3 million impressions

 Digital billboards (Lamar)  - 2 million impressions
 E-mail blasts every other month to 15,000 recipients - 8,407 opened
 Press conference at Empie Park to launch campaign with guest speakers

and a media presence
 Social media (Instagram and Twitter) once a week -  2,000 interactions

4



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 
January 22, 2020 

 Printed materials - 800
 Presence at farmer’s markets downtown and Wrightsville Beach, partner

employers, posters displayed at 12 businesses downtown
 A dedicated webpage at www.wmpo.org
 “Be A Looker” Pledge - 285 and increasing

Mr. Cannon stated that a survey found that 93% of respondents were satisfied with the 
campaign. However, 72% of respondents felt no safer than before. 

A question/answer and discussion period was held. Mr. Rivenbark commented that 
these improvements take time. He noted that the use of motorized wheel chairs has also 
increased.  Also, crossing College Road near the University is a real challenge.   

Mr. Anderson concurred.  He suggested putting signals on the trail or other 
improvements that might prevent accidents.  

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Zapple, Mr. Cannon stated that the General Assembly 
has no legislation regarding motorized scooters yet. 

In response to an inquiry by Ms. Pierce, Mr. Cannon stated that in the future the 
campaign might be separated to focus on each of the transportation modes.  

b. NCDOT Resiliency Study – Matt Lauffer, NCDOT
Matt Lauffer gave an overview of the NCDOT Resiliency Study on interstates I-95 and
I-40 and current weather trends.  After the significant impacts of Hurricane Matthew and
Hurricane Florence, Secretary Trogdon directed the study. Hurricane Florence caused
historic amounts of rainfall, 43 lives were lost, and damage totaled $17 billion.
A significant impact to the infrastructure included 600 road closures and 2,100
improvements/repairs caused by Matthew, and 2,500 road closures and 3,100 site
repairs caused by Florence.  And, I-40 was closed for nine days during Florence.

Mr. Lauffer stated that Hurricane Floyd in 1999, Hurricane Matthew in 2016 and 
Hurricane Florence in 2018 were 500-year and 1,000-year events statistically.  He 
pointed out that a high probability exists for these types of events to occur again during 
the next 20 years.  Additionally, there were a couple of isolated events in Franklin 
County and Catawba County in June of 2019 where 7.5 inches of rain fell in four hours, 
which is also categorized as a 1,000-year event.   

Mr. Lauffer displayed a graph of concentration pathways of temperature increase with 
two potential trends, high and low.  Additionally, a discussion included the sea level rise 
of eight inches since 1880, and a foot to four-feet by 2100 for high tide currents, which 
includes a subsidence of land.  Also, hurricane power is increasing with Category 4 and 
Category 5 storms occurring more frequently.  NOAA is tracking the value or the 
development increase in cost. 

Mr. Lauffer stated that ten locations on I-95 and seven locations on I-40 were studied for 
resiliency.  Although the federal register requires a 50-year surge for interstate 
highways, a 100-year surge is now being considered for resiliency options. He noted that 
shortcomings of the study included an omission of high-level system modeling, and a 
lack of detail for design; although it included the cost for utilities and right-of-way.  He 

5



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 4 
January 22, 2020 
 

gave an overview of improvement options to elevate the roadway or increase capacity of 
culverts for drainage, implement roadside barriers, and alternatives routes to maintain 
connectivity.  He noted that South Carolina had some reactivity time for temporary 
measures, but North Carolina has less time for them.   

Mr. Lauffer stated that the draft report is available for review; although, some locations 
will be added around US-17 and the Marine Corps Air Station near Jacksonville. 
Currently, the Division is prioritizing and identifying funding needs, and integrating flood 
improvements with reconstructive project opportunities on I-95.  Additionally, Executive 
Order 80, the Governor’s initiative on climate change and resiliency, will be integrated, 
especially Section 9, when released in March. Other actions include increased 
communication with emergency management, development of flood warning tools for 
operational awareness, and participation in national conferences and research.  Mr. 
Lauffer displayed an interactive map with the improvements and estimated costs. 

Chairman Piepmeyer expressed concerns regarding the lack of resiliency alternates for 
US-17.  Mr. Williams concurred, especially those around Town Creek. 

Mr. Anderson expressed concerns regarding funding for resiliency improvements.  Mr. 
Kimes commented that it’s important that the needs have been identified.  He added that 
NC-133 has two points of vulnerability.  He noted that the Division is trying to use the 
funds that have already been programmed to address needs with ongoing projects with 
the flooding in mind.  

Mr. Barfield expressed concerns regarding the lack of funding for I-40 at the legislature. 

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Anderson, Mr. Kimes stated that federal grants provide 
a portion of funding for interstates; although, the state must pursue it aggressively.  

In response to an inquiry by Vice Chair Batleman, Mr. Kimes stated that the Town Creek 
area on US-17 could take a number of years unless additional revenues are found.  

8. Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2019 
b. Resolution approving 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation 

Improvement Program Amendments #19-5 and #19-6 
c. Resolution approving 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation 

Improvement Program Administrative Modification #19-5 
d. Resolution amending the Wilmington Urban Area MPO meeting schedule for the 

November TCC meeting 

Mr. Barfield made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 8a through 8d as presented.  
Mr. Williams seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously.   

  

6



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 5 
January 22, 2020 
 

9. Regular Agenda 
a. Resolution supporting an amendment to the Wilmington Urban Area MPO’s 

Transportation Improvement Program and requesting the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation remove Direct Attributable funding for the 
Clarendon Park Multi-use Path and Salisbury Street Streetscape Projects from the 
State/MPO Transportation Improvement Programs 
Mr. Kozlosky stated that these requests to remove funds have come from the Town of 
Carolina Beach and the Town of Wrightsville Beach. The Town of Carolina Beach has 
decided not to move forward with the Clarendon Avenue Project, and the Town of 
Wrightsville Beach desires to proceed with the Salisbury Street Streetscape Project 
using Town funds only.   

Ms. Pierce requested to table the item for the Town of Carolina Beach.  She noted that 
the Town’s Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee is considering possibilities that will work for 
the Town and its citizens. 

Ms. Pierce made a motion to table the item concerning Claredon Avenue to a future date 
in order to consider design modifications.  Mr. Barfield seconded the motion, and it 
carried unanimously. 

Mr. Anderson made a motion to approve the Resolution supporting an amendment to the 
Wilmington Urban Area MPO’s Transportation Improvement Program and requesting the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation remove Direct Attributable funding for the 
Salisbury Street Streetscape Projects from the State/MPO Transportation Improvement 
Programs. Mr. Rivenbark seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.  

b. Opening of the 30-day public comment period for the FY 2021 Unified Planning 
Work Program 
Mr. Kozlosky stated that this item is the opening of the 30-day public comment period 
for the fiscal year 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), which is the MPO’s 
budget.  He noted that the MPO is required by the state to adopt its budget by 
March 15th. The public involvement policy adopted by the MPO requires a 30-day public 
comment period.  Highlights of this budget include the proposed completion of a Pender 
County Streets Plan.  Also, once the Board has considered the Cape Fear Moving 
Forward long-range transportation plan, staff would work with the Board to develop a 
five-year strategic plan Additionally, an enhancement has been included for the 
purchase of Streetlight data, otherwise known as mobile phone data and connected 
vehicle data through navigation systems, which would be used in transportation planning 
activities, traffic engineering analysis, and data for bicycles and pedestrians.   

Mr. Kozlosky stated that a 4% merit increase has been included as well.  He reminded 
Board members that the MPO is subject to the city’s merit policy.  In order to be 
conservative, a 4% increase was proposed based on estimates from other jurisdictions 
ranging from 3% to 4% merit increases.   

Mr. Kozlosky requested a motion to open the public comment period.  He noted that this 
item would return for consideration at the next MPO Board Meeting on February 26th.  
He added that each of the member jurisdictions should have received a letter related 
their local match.  

7



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 6 
January 22, 2020 
 

Mr. Anderson made a motion to open the 30-day public comment period.  Mr. Williams 
seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously.   

A brief question/answer and discussion period was held.  

10. Discussion 
a. 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 STIP/MPO Transportation Improvement Program 

Administrative Modification #20-1 
Mr. Kozlosky stated that this item is for informational purposes only and will be brought 
forward to the MPO Board at its next meeting.   

b. WMPO Bike/Pedestrian Committee Model E-Bicycle Ordinance 
Mr. Cannon stated that several months ago, New Hanover County Parks and Gardens 
requested that the MPO Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee draft a model 
ordinance for the regulation of electric bicycles for consideration by member jurisdictions 
if needed.  He noted that the draft ordinance received a few comments from the 
Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) last week.   

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Williams, Mr. Cannon stated that some of the public 
comments heard earlier today were heard at TCC as well.  Regarding the helmet fine, he 
pointed out that sometimes a recommendation is made that is the responsibility of local 
law enforcement; although the intention is to prioritize safety.  He requested that the 
MPO Board forward any comments to staff by January 31. 

Mr. Williams clarified that this model ordinance is a suggestion that the member 
jurisdictions may or may not adopt.  

Mr. Kozlosky concurred that this is a nonbinding model ordinance for this committee, 
which will be passed along to the member jurisdictions to consider, amend and/or adopt. 

c. STIP/Locally Administered Projects 
Mr. Kozlosky stated that due to NCDOT’s cash management issues staff has been 
asked to work with member jurisdictions regarding anticipated expenditures of Direct 
Attributable (DA) funds.  He noted that MPO staff met with the City of Wilmington this 
morning and will be meeting with staffs of the other member jurisdictions to update 
NCDOT with Direct Attributable projects and expected expenditures over the next 
18 months.  He added that NCDOT has indicated that they would not be willing to pay 
invoices for projects that have not been started pre-December 1st until June, and 
possibly as late as January of 2021. He added that the update will be provided to 
NCDOT’s Chief Operating Officer by January 31, 2020 and that the Division is 
undergoing a similar exercise. 

Mr. Kimes commented that NCDOT is hoping to catch up by the end of this year. 

A question/answer and discussion period was held regarding future funding sources.  

In response to an inquiry by Mr. Zapple, Mr. Kozlosky stated that reimbursements will be 
sought for projects that are already in progress.  

Mr. Kimes stated that the next 12 months will follow different criteria.  He noted that 
NCDOT has had to re-adjust some of its delays. He commented that the Division 3 is 

8



WMPO Board Meeting Minutes  Page 7 
January 22, 2020 
 

better off than some of the other Divisions and that NCDOT is being held to a higher 
standard of accountability these days.  

Mr. Rivenbark expressed concerns regarding the impacts to economic development.   

11. Updates 
a. Wilmington Urban Area MPO 
b. Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority 
c. NCDOT Division  
d. NCDOT Transportation Planning Division 

Mr. Kozlosky stated that updates are included in the agenda packet.  He added that although 
some stick figures have been public for proposed alignments of the Cape Fear Memorial Bridge, 
they are not ready to be distributed yet.  Once the information is ready, it will be forwarded to 
members.  Additionally, the City of Wilmington and New Hanover County yesterday adopted 
resolutions supporting public transportation.  He noted that the MPO would be a partner and 
have a seat at the table. 

Mr. Kozlosky stated that NCDOT is beginning public outreach regarding Prioritization 6.0. 

Ms. Marks stated that this is an opportunity for the public to comment on projects they would like 
to see in Prioritization 6.0.  She noted that she will be in her office three entire days next week 
to answer questions. 

Mr. Kozlosky stated that staff will begin to bring information regarding Prioritization 6.0 from the 
MPO perspective to the MPO Board at its next meeting.    

12. The next WMPO Board meeting – February 26, 2020 
13. Adjournment 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:49 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mike Kozlosky 
Executive Director 
Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 

 THE ABOVE MINUTES ARE NOT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS.   
THE ENTIRE PROCEEDINGS ARE RECORDED ON A COMPACT DISC AS PART OF THIS RECORD. 

9



  
Pr

op
os

ed
 R

ev
is

io
ns

 to
 2

01
8-

20
27

 a
nd

 2
02

0-
20

29
 S

TI
P/

M
PO

 T
IP

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
 

ST
IP

/M
PO

 T
IP

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

# 
20

-1
 

(J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0)
 

 EB
-5

60
0 

 
N

EW
 H

AN
O

VE
R 

PR
O

J.C
AT

EG
O

RY
 

DI
VI

SI
O

N
 

   

SR
 1

21
9 

(S
O

UT
H 

17
TH

 S
TR

EE
T)

, H
O

SP
IT

AL
 

PL
AZ

A 
TO

 IN
DE

PE
N

DE
N

CE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

RD
.  

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
 M

UL
TI

U
SE

 P
AT

H.
  

TO
 B

AL
AN

CE
 F

U
N

DI
N

G,
 D

EL
AY

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 
FR

O
M

 F
Y 

20
 T

O
 F

Y 
22

. 
 

 
 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 

       

FY
 2

02
2 

- (
BG

AN
Y)

 $
74

6,
00

0 
FY

 2
02

2 
-  

   
   

   
 (L

) $
18

7,
00

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
93

3,
00

0 
  

 

* 
R-

33
00

B 
PE

N
DE

R 
PR

O
J.C

AT
EG

O
RY

 
RE

GI
O

N
AL

 

U
S 

17
, N

C 
21

0 
TO

 U
S 

17
 N

O
RT

H 
O

F 
HA

M
PS

TE
AD

. 
 P

RO
JE

CT
 T

O
 U

TI
LI

ZE
 B

U
IL

D 
N

C 
BO

N
DS

 

 
 

EN
GI

N
EE

RI
N

G 
            BU

IL
D 

N
C 

CO
N

ST
 

         

   
  F

Y 
20

21
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

 
   

  F
Y 

20
22

 - 
(T

) $
17

2,
00

0 
 

   
  F

Y 
20

23
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

 
   

  F
Y 

20
24

 - 
(T

) $
17

2,
00

0 
 

   
  F

Y 
20

25
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

 
   

  F
Y 

20
26

 - 
(T

) $
17

2,
00

0 
 

   
  F

Y 
20

27
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

 
   

  F
Y 

20
28

 - 
(T

) $
17

2,
00

0 
 

   
  F

Y 
20

29
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

   
  F

Y 
20

30
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

   
  F

Y 
20

31
 - 

(T
) $

17
2,

00
0 

 
   

  F
Y 

20
32

 - 
(T

) $
17

2,
00

0 
 

   
  P

O
ST

 Y
R-

 (T
) $

51
6,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

21
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

  F
Y 

20
22

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

23
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

  F
Y 

20
24

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

25
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

  F
Y 

20
26

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

27
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

  F
Y 

20
28

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

29
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

  F
Y 

20
30

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 

 

10



   CO
N

TS
TR

U
CT

IO
N 

  F
Y 

20
31

 - 
(T

) $
3,

70
7,

00
0 

 
  F

Y 
20

32
 - 

(T
) $

3,
70

7,
00

0 
 

PO
ST

 Y
R-

 (T
) $

11
,1

21
,0

00
  

FY
 2

02
1 

- (
T)

 $
12

,8
00

,0
00

  
FY

 2
02

2 
- (

T)
 $

12
,8

00
,0

00
  

FY
 2

02
3 

-  (
T)

 $
12

,8
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
96

,5
85

,0
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

* 
TA

-6
70

0 
 

N
EW

 H
AN

O
VE

R 
PR

O
J.C

AT
EG

O
RY

 

CA
PE

 F
EA

R 
PU

BL
IC

 T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 

AU
TH

O
RI

TY
, A

DA
  

FU
N

DI
N

G
 A

DD
ED

 A
T 

TH
E 

RE
Q

U
ES

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

IL
M

IN
G

TO
N

 M
PO

 

 
 

CA
PI

TA
L 

FY
 2

02
0 

- (
BG

DA
) $

15
0,

00
0 

 
FY

 2
02

0 
- (

L)
   

   
   

   
$3

0,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
18

0,
00

0 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

* 
TG

-6
78

4 
 

N
EW

 H
AN

O
VE

R 
PR

O
J.C

AT
EG

O
RY

 

CA
PE

 F
EA

R 
PU

BL
IC

 T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 

AU
TH

O
RI

TY
, P

RE
VE

N
TI

VE
 

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 F

U
N

DI
N

G
 A

DD
ED

 A
T 

TH
E 

RE
Q

U
ES

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

IL
M

IN
G

TO
N

 M
PO

 

 
 

CA
PI

TA
L 

FY
 2

02
0 

- (
BG

DA
) $

35
0,

00
0 

 
FY

 2
02

0 
-  

(L
)  

   
   

   
$7

0,
00

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
42

0,
00

0 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

    

   

 
 

 
       

    

11



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION #20-1 TO THE 

2018-2027 AND 2020-2029 STATE /MPO TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAMS 

 
WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides 
transportation planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of 
Kure Beach, Town of Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, 
New Hanover County, Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority and the North Carolina Board of Transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has found that the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization is conducting transportation planning in a continuous, cooperative, and 
comprehensive manner; and  
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Board of Transportation adopted the 2018-2027 State 
Transportation Improvement Program on August 3, 2017 and the Wilmington Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Board adopted the Statewide/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs on August 30, 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Board of Transportation adopted the 2020-2029 State 
Transportation Improvement Program on September 5,  2019 and the Wilmington Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Board adopted the Statewide/MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs on October 30, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization desires to modify 
the adopted 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 State/MPO Transportation Improvement Programs for 
Administrative Modification #20-1. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization hereby approves modifying the 2018-2027 and 2020-2029 State/MPO 
Transportation Improvement Programs for Administrative Modification #20-1. 
 
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s Board on February 26, 2020. 
 
 
 
       
David Piepmeyer, Chair 
 
 
 
      
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

12



 
   

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  MPO Board members 
 
FROM: Mike Kozlosky, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  February 19, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Section 5310 Community Grant Award 
 
 
On June 27, 2014 the North Carolina Secretary of Transportation designated the Cape Fear Public 
Transportation Authority as “the designated recipient” of the Persons with Disabilities Funding 
Program (Section 5310). The allocation of these funds required a Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) approved Program Management Plan (PMP) which was adopted by the Cape Fear Public 
Transportation Authority Board on April 23, 2015 and supported by the MPO Board on June 24, 
2015.  
 
Eligible applicants for Section 5310 funding are non-profit organizations, state or local 
governmental agencies, and private operators of public transportation services. These applicants 
provide matching funds (80/20 capital or 50/50 operating).  The total expected federal funding 
available for this grant award is $65,058. The 2020 grant applications are due for submission to 
FTA in March, 2020. The funds are expected to be available in July 2020. 
 
The Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority received three applications for this funding. The 
Wave Connect Advisory Committee reviewed and scored these applications and recommends 
awards to these applicants in the following amounts:  
 
Recommended Award Amounts: 
 
New Hanover County (NHC) Senior Resource Center 
• $44,000 Federal funding  
• $11,000 Local match (80/20 matching funds) 
• $55,000 Total project budget  
• Accessible Van Trips: 2,244  
 
 
 

13



 
 

 

 
2 

 

 
Brunswick Senior Resources, Inc. (BSRI) Brunswick Center at Leland 
• $8,423 Federal funding 
• $2,106 Local match (80/20 matching funds) 
• $10,529 Total project budget 
• Accessible Van Trips: 1,453 
 
Elderhaus 
• $12,635 Federal funding 
• $3,159 Local match (80/20 matching funds) 
• $15,794 Total project budget 
• Accessible Van Trips: 644 
 
The two organizations that have received funding for the past three years (NHC and BSRI) are 
once again being recommended for funding. In addition, a third organization (Elderhaus) is also 
being recommended for award in FY 21. The TCC recommended approval at their February 
meeting. Staff recommends support of these grant awards by the MPO Board. 
 
 

14



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

 
RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE WAVE CONNECT ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR AWARD OF THE SECTION 5310 COMMUNITY GRANT 
PROJECT FUNDS  

 
WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 27, 2014 the North Carolina Secretary of Transportation designated the Cape Fear 
Public Transportation Authority as “the designated recipient” of the Persons with Disabilities Funding 
Program (Section 5310); and 
 
WHEREAS, the allocation of Section 5310 funds required a Federal Transit Administration approved 
Program Management Plan which was adopted by the Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority Board on 
April 23, 2015 and supported by the MPO Board on June 24, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, eligible applicants for Section 5310 funding are non-profit organizations, state or local 
governmental agencies, and private operators of public transportation services; and  
 
WHEREAS, eligible applicants provide matching funds (80/20 capital or 50/50 operating); and  
 
WHEREAS, the total expected funding level available for this grant award is $65,058; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority received three applications for this funding; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Wave Connect Advisory Committee has reviewed and scored these applications and 
recommends the New Hanover County (NHC) Senior Resource Center, Brunswick Senior Resources, Inc. 
(BSRI) Brunswick Center at Leland, and Elderhaus for this funding. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby supports the WAVE Connect Advisory Committee’s recommendation to provide the 
Section 5310 funding to the New Hanover County (NHC) Senior Resource Center, Brunswick Senior 
Resources, Inc. (BSRI) Brunswick Center at Leland, and Elderhaus. 
 
ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on February 26, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
       
David Piepmeyer, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

15



 
 

Interlocal Software Usage Agreement 

  
This INTERLOCAL SOFTWARE USAGE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the 

1st day of November, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), (the “Effective Date”), by and among the Research Triangle 
Regional Public Transportation Authority, a regional public transportation authority established pursuant to 
Article 26 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, d/b/a GoTriangle (“GoTriangle”), and each 
entity designated as a Stakeholder as set forth on the signature pages annexed hereto (each, a “Stakeholder,” and 
collectively, the “Stakeholders”).   GoTriangle and/or the Stakeholders may sometimes be referred to in this 
Agreement each individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, RideShark Corporation (“RideShark”), and GoTriangle have entered into a Rideshare 
Matching, Commute Calendar & Incentive Software Contract (GoTriangle # 19-019) annexed as Exhibit A hereto 
(the “Contract”), which Contract shall enable GoTriangle and the Stakeholders to utilize certain software 
provided by RideShark for ride matching, bicycle/walk/transit buddy, one time trip matching, Emergency Ride 
Home, vanpool administration, trip tracking and loyalty and incentive programming (the “Software”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, GoTriangle and the Stakeholders desire to allocate certain rights granted by and obligations 
arising under the Contract among themselves, including but not limited to, the use of the Software; and 
 
 WHEREAS, GoTriangle and the Stakeholders desire to admit the Parties listed on Schedule 1 attached 
hereto as Stakeholders to this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (“NCDOT”), as required by Section 8 of 
this Agreement, agrees with GoTriangle to admit the Parties listed on Schedule 1 as Stakeholders to this 
Agreement.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises herein made, the 
representations, warranties, and covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1.  Authorized End Users.  Upon execution of this Agreement by a Stakeholder, that Stakeholder shall 
become an authorized end user of the Software and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Contract.   

 2.  Representations and Warranties.  Each Stakeholder represents and warrants to each and every other 
Stakeholder that it has the requisite authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, that the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement does not conflict with its organizational documents or bylaws, and that this Agreement 
constitutes a valid and enforceable contract against such Stakeholder. 

 3.  Covenants.  Each Stakeholder agrees to comply with the following covenants: 

(a) A covenant not to reverse compile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer all or any part of 
the Software; 

(b) A covenant not to copy, reproduce, modify, adapt, translate or add new features to the Software 
without the express written consent of GoTriangle; 

(c) A covenant not to permit disclosure of, access to, or use of the Software by any third party unless 
authorized in writing by GoTriangle; 

16



-2- 
 

(d) A covenant that the Proprietary Information (as defined in the Contract) is owned by GoTriangle 
or GoTriangle has the applicable rights of use and such Stakeholder will maintain the Proprietary Information in 
strict confidence and not disclose the Proprietary Information to any third party without GoTriangle’s prior written 
consent; 

(e) A covenant to not disclose or permit disclosure of the personal information of the public that 
accesses the sites supported by the Software including, but not limited to, email addresses of the public.  
Stakeholders shall only communicate with the accessing public through the Software unless authorized in writing 
by GoTriangle. 

 4.  Limitation of Liability.  GoTriangle does not give any warranty with respect to the Software, or the 
maintenance or support services to be provided by RideShark with respect thereto, including no warranty 
concerning whether such Software or services will be operational or functional.  GoTriangle shall not be liable 
for any deficiencies in, or failure of, the Software or services.  The sole remedy of any Stakeholder with respect 
to deficiencies in (i) the operation and/or function of the Software or (ii) the maintenance or services provided by 
RideShark,  shall be to cause GoTriangle to use reasonable efforts to pursue remediation and/or claims with 
respect to the Software and/or services against RideShark under the terms of the Contract .  Without limiting the 
above, GOTRIANGLE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO ANY STAKEHOLDER ON ACCOUNT OF ANY 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE SOFTWARE OR 
SERVICES RENDERED BY RIDESHARK. 

 5.  Indemnification.  Each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) hereby agrees in the manner and to the extent 
provided by NCGS 143-291 et seq., to defend each other Party (the “Indemnified Party”) against, for, and hold 
each Indemnified Party harmless from, all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses from any third party 
claims, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out of injury to or the death of any person or the damage to 
any property, resulting from the negligence, wrongful act, error or omission by an Indemnifying Party from the 
Indemnifying Party’s breach of this Agreement.  Each Stakeholder specifically, and without limitation, agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless GoTriangle from any and all claims brought by RideShark  and/or third parties for 
a Stakeholder breach of Section 3 “Covenants.”  

 6.  Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one year, unless terminated earlier by the written 
agreement of all Stakeholders.  This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional periods of one (1) year 
until GoTriangle and RideShark terminate the Contract; provided that any Stakeholder may terminate its 
respective interest in this Agreement by giving written notice of its intent to opt out of this Agreement at least 
sixty (60) days prior to an automatic renewal date.  

 7.  Liaison.  Each Party shall designate a liaison who will be responsible for coordinating the use of the 
Software and the provision of the services described by this Agreement and the Contract. The initial liaison for 
each Party is set forth in Schedule 1 annexed hereto.  Any Party may change its liaison at any time upon written 
notice given to the other Parties in compliance with Section 8.   

 8.  Amendments; Additional Parties.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in 
writing signed by the Parties hereto and specifically referring to this Agreement.  Any amendment effected in 
accordance with this section shall be binding upon each of the Parties hereto.  Notwithstanding the above, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, GoTriangle and NCDOT may together agree in writing to admit new 
Stakeholders to this Agreement and revise Schedule 1 to reflect admittance of such new Stakeholders without 
requiring the signature of all Parties. Additionally, any change in a Party liaison or address requires notice of such 
to all Parties, but not the signatures of all Parties. 

17



-3- 
 

 9.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws 
applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within the State of North Carolina, without regard to 
conflicts of laws or choice of laws principles. 

 10.  Notices.  Any notices which any Party hereto is required or desire to give the other hereunder shall 
be deemed to have been properly given for all purposes if (a) delivered against a written receipt of delivery, (b) 
mailed by registered or certified mail of the United States Postal Service, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or (c) delivered to a nationally recognized overnight courier service for next business day delivery, to its addressee 
at such Party’s address as set forth below, or (d) delivered via email to GoTriangle’s liaison or facsimile 
transmission to the facsimile number listed below, provided, however, that if such communication is given via 
email or facsimile transmission, an original counterpart of such communication shall concurrently be sent in either 
the manner specified in the clause (b) or (c) above.  Each such notice, demand or request, shall be deemed to have 
been given upon the earlier of (a) actual receipt or refusal by the addressee or (b) three business days after deposit 
thereof in the exclusive custody of the United States Postal Service if sent in accordance with section (b) above 
and one business day after the deposit thereof with a courier if sent pursuant to section (c) above. 
 
 

To GoTriangle: GoTriangle  
 Michelle Epps Parker 

Sustainable Travel Services Manager 
 PO Box 13787 
 Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 
 Fax Number:  (919) 485-7441 
  
With a Copy To: GoTriangle  

Office of General Counsel 
 PO Box 13787 
 Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 
 Fax Number:  (919) 485-7417 
 
To Stakeholder: According to signature sheets with addition of Wilmington Urban Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (WMPO). 
 
 

Notices may be given on behalf of any Party by its legal counsel.  Any Party may, from time to time, by notice 
as herein provided, designate a different address to which notice to it shall be sent. 

 11.  Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto, and their respective heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns.  No waiver by any Party hereto of any 
default shall be deemed as a waiver of any prior or subsequent default of the same or other provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement (including the Schedule and Exhibit attached hereto) constitutes the entire 
understanding of the Parties hereto, revokes and supersedes all prior agreements between the Parties hereto 
(whether written or oral) and is intended as a final expression of their mutual understanding.  
 
 

 

 

Signature pages immediately follow.

18



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the Effective Date first written above. 
 
GoTriangle: 

 

RESEARCH TRIANGLE REGIONAL PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (“GoTriangle”) 

 
By:_____________________________ 
      Name:  Shelley Blake Curran 
      Title:    Interim President & CEO 
 
 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
      Name:  Thomas Henry 
      Title:    Interim General Counsel 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by 
the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
      Name:  Saundra Freeman 
      Title:    Chief Financial Officer 
 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the Effective Date first written above. 
 
STAKEHOLDER: Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (WMPO) 
 
By:__________________________________ 
       
      Name:  Mike Kozlosky 
 
      Title:    Executive Director 
 
      Physical Address: 
       
      __________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________ 
  
      Mailing Address (if different from above):      
         
       __________________________________ 
       
       __________________________________ 
       
 
      Email:_____________________________ 
       
      Phone:_____________________________ 
 
       Fax:_____________________________ 
 

 

20



 
 

SCHEDULE 1 
 

STATEWIDE STAKEHOLDERS 
 

Stakeholder Liaison 

Charlotte Area Transit System 
(CATS) 

 
Courtney Schultz 

Senior Marketing Representative, CATS 
courtney.schultz@ci.charlotte.nc.us, (704) 336-6999 

 

Land of Sky Regional Council 

 
Tristan Winkler 

French Broad River MPO Director 
Land of Sky Regional Council 

tristan@landofsky.org, (828) 251-6622 
 

North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) 

 
Hanna Cockburn 

Bicycle & Pedestrian Division Director, NCDOT 
jicockburn@ncdot.gov, (919) 707-2601 

 

Piedmont Authority for Regional 
Transportation (PART) 

 
Sabrina Glenn 

Director of Commuter Operations, PART 
sabrinag@partnc.org, (336) 291-4321 

 

Wilmington Urban Area 
Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(WMPO) 

 
Mike Kozlosky 

Executive Director, WMPO 
mike.kozlosky@wilmingtonnc.gov, (910) 341-3258 

 
 

  

21



 

GOTRIANGLE STAKEHOLDERS 
 

Stakeholder Liaison 

GoTriangle 
Paul J. Straw 

Sustainable Travel Services Supervisor 
pstraw@gotriangle.org, (919) 485-7484 

Triangle J Council of Governments  
(TJCOG) 

Andrea Eilers 
Program Manager 

ailers@tjcog.org, (919) 558-2705 

City of Durham 
Tom Devlin 

Transportation Planner 
tom.devlin@durhamnc.gov, (919) 560-4157 x36507 

City of Raleigh 
Anne Galamb 

TDM Coordinator 
anne.galamb@raleighnc.gov, (919) 996-4139 

Duke University 
Tyler Dewey, J.D. 

Alternative Transportation Lead 
tyler.dewey@duke.edu 

North Carolina Central University 
(NCCU) 

Cha’ssem Anderson 
Transportation Director 

cander21@nccu.edu, (919) 530-7338 

North Carolina State University  
(NCSU) 

Sarah Williams 
TDM Program Manager 

sawilli6@ncsu.edu, (919) 515-1613 

Orange County 
Brennan Bouma 

Sustainability Coordinator 
bbouma@orangecountync.gov, (919) 245-2626 

Research Triangle Park  
(RTP) 

Kimberly Williams 
Senior Director of Construction and Planning 

williams@rtp.org, (919) 654-1707 

Town of Chapel Hill 
Len Cone 

Go Chapel Hill TDM Outreach Coordinator 
lcone@townofchapelhill.org, (919) 969-5065 

University of North Carolina at 
Chapel Hill (UNC) 

Amanda Simmons 
TDM Coordinator 

ahsimmons@unc.edu, (919) 843-4414 

22



 

Wake County Local Service 
Provider, GoTriangle 

Kim Johnson 
Wake County Outreach Coordinator 

kjohnson@gotriangle.org, (919) 485-7477 

Wake Technical Community College 
John Majernik 

Director of Energy, Sustainability and Transportation 
jlmajernik@waketech.edu, (919) 866-5697 
 
 

23



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RIDESHARE MATCHING, COMMUTE CALENDAR & INCENTIVE SOFTWARE 
CONTRACT #19-019 

 
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD  

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN 
INTERLOCAL SOFTWARE USAGE AGREEMENT WITH GO TRIANGLE FOR RIDE 

MATCHING, COMMUTE CALENDAR AND THE INCENTIVE SOFTWARE CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s Cape Fear Transportation 
2040 Plan includes a Transportation Demand Management Element and created the position of full-time 
Transportation Demand Management Coordinator in 2016 of which position oversees the Go Coast 
program; and 

WHEREAS, since the creation of “Go Coast”, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization has been in partnership with the Research Triangle Regional Public Transportation Authority 
(“GoTriangle”) to use a rideshare matching software “Share The Ride NC” to promote to residents in the 
region; and 

WHEREAS, RideShark Corporation (“RideShark”), and GoTriangle have entered into a Rideshare 
Matching, Commute Calendar & Incentive Software Contract which shall enable GoTriangle and the 
Stakeholders to utilize certain software provided by RideShark for ride matching, bicycle/walk/transit 
buddy, one-time trip matching, Emergency Ride Home, vanpool administration, trip tracking, and loyalty 
and incentive programming; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization is a Stakeholder of 
“GoTriangle;” and 

WHEREAS, GoTriangle shall hold the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization as a 
stakeholder to the terms and conditions of its contract with RideShark so “Go Coast” may be an authorized 
user of the software.  

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an inter-local software usage 
agreement with go triangle for ride matching, commute calendar and the incentive software contract 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on February 26, 2020. 

David Piepmeyer, Chair 

Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

48



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION TO APPLY FOR FY2021 TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANGEMENT PROGRAM (TDM) FUNDING AND PROVIDE THE REQUIRED LOCAL 

MATCH  

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Governor of North 
Carolina have designated the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) as the agency 
responsible for administering federal and state public transportation funds; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from the US 
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds from the North Carolina 
General Assembly to provide assistance for rural public transportation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local agencies for the 
provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services consistent with the policy 
requirements of each funding source for planning, community and agency involvement, service design, 
service alternatives, training and conference participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and 
alcohol testing policy and program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated costs 
analysis); and 

WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital funds and will 
have different percentages of federal, state, and local funds; and  

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization hereby assures and certifies 
that it will provide the required local matching funds; that its staff has the technical capacity to implement 
and manage the project, prepare required reports, obtain required training, attend meetings and 
conferences; and agrees to comply with the federal and state statues, regulations, executive orders, Section 
5333 (b) Warranty, and all administrative requirements related to the applications made to and grants 
received from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the provisions of Section 1001 of Title 18, U. 
S. C.; and

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization will provide all annual 
certifications and assurances to the State of North Carolina required for the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization was awarded Fiscal 
Years 16, 17, 18, 19, and 20 Transportation Demand Management grants; and  

WHEREAS, in an effort to continue the program, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization must apply annually for these grant funds.  

49



NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby authorizes the Executive Director to submit grant application (s) for federal and state 
funding in response to NCDOT’s calls for projects, make the necessary assurances and certifications and 
be empowered to enter into an agreement with the NCDOT to provide rural, small urban, and urban public 
transportation services. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s 
Board on February 26. 2020. 

_________________________________ 
David Piepmeyer, Chair 

_________________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

A motion was made by  and seconded by   for the adoption of the resolution, and 
upon being put to a vote was duly adopted. 

Seal Subscribed and sworn to me 
(date)

Notary Public * 

Printed Name and Address 

My commission expires 
(date)

50



Unified Planning Work Program 

 Fiscal Year 2021 

DRAFT 1/10/20 

51



    2 

 

 

 

FY 2021 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
for the  

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
Subject Page 
 
Table of Contents .................................................................................................... 2 
 
Introduction ............................................................................................................ 3 
 
Narrative of Section 104(f) Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 21 ................................ 4 
 
Tables of UPWP FTA Section 5303 Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 21 ..................... 8 
 
Planning Work Program Funding Sources FY 21 ....................................................... 16 
 
Anticipated DBE Contracting Opportunities for FY 21 ................................................ 17 
 
Resolution of Approval ........................................................................................... 18 
 
MPO Certification ................................................................................................... 19 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



    3 

 

Introduction 
 
 
In compliance with Federal law and in the spirit of cooperation, the Wilmington Urban Area 
conducts a “cooperative, comprehensive, and continuing....” transportation planning 
process.  This Planning Work Program (PWP) outlines the tasks and associated funding 
sources dedicated to the Wilmington Urban Area MPO transportation planning process 
during fiscal year 2021.  Depending on the specific funding source, tasks funded through 
the PWP are eligible for reimbursement of 80-90% of their cost from the Federal Highway 
Administration and Federal Transit Administration through the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation. 
 
The PWP for the Wilmington Urban Area identifies five separate funding sources for Urban 
Area transportation planning.  A brief description of these funding sources follows: 
 

-Statewide Planning and Research Programs (SPR) - These funds are used by 
NCDOT to conduct work for the Wilmington Urban Area MPO. 

  
-Federal Highway Administration Section 104(f) Funds - These funds are dedicated 
to the urban area to perform transportation planning. They require a 20% local 
match. 

 
-Federal Transit Administration Section 5303 Funds - These funds are used for 
transit planning in the urban area. The Federal Transit Administration provides 80% 
of these funds, NCDOT 10%, and there is a required 10% local match. 
 
-Surface Transportation Program-Direct Attributable Funds - These funds are 
dedicated to Transportation Management Areas and these funds can be used to 
perform transportation planning. They require a 20% local match. 
 
-Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Funds – These funds are used for 
management and operations for Transportation Demand Management. 

 
The local match requirements will be shared by all members of the Wilmington Urban Area 
MPO in direct proportion to population as defined in the Wilmington Urban Area MPO 
Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



    4 

 

Narrative of PWP Section 104(f) Work Tasks to be Performed in FY 21 
(Primary work to be performed by lead planning agency staff except where noted.) 

 
Line Item Codes: 
 
II-A1 Traffic Volume Counts- Wilmington MPO staff maintains an ongoing traffic counting 
program. An annual summary of the urban area traffic counts and accident data will be 
prepared and uploaded to the WMPO website.   
 
II-A2 Vehicle Miles of Travel- Establish VMT as measure of effectiveness of transportation 
system.  Measure the VMT with the new travel demand model. 
 
II-A3 Street System Changes- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-A4 Traffic Accidents-Currently MPO staff conducts an ongoing effort to summarize traffic 
accident data for specific projects.  MPO staff also utilizes accident data for specific 
inquiries. 
 
II-A5 Transit System Data- Update of transit system database as needed. 
 
II-A6 Dwelling Unit, Population, Employment Changes- Will measure land use changes by 
Transportation Analysis Zone between 2010 Census and travel demand model base year. 
Staff will provide capacity analysis for proposed developments within the Wilmington Urban 
Area MPO’s planning area boundary. 
 
II-A7 Air Travel- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-A8 Vehicle Occupancy Rate Counts- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-A9 Travel Time Studies- Conduct key travel time studies for travel demand model and 
development of the Long Range Transportation Plan. 
 
II-A10 Mapping- Keep Geographic Information System files current and produce maps to 
support the TCC and MPO Board, transportation plans, programs, and projects. 
 
II-A11 Central Area Parking Inventory- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-A12 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Inventory- Update the Bike Ped potential project 
database. 
 
II-B1 Collection of Base Year Data- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-B2 Collection of Network Data- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-B3 Travel Model Updates- In concert with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, MPO staff will assist in the development of the 2050 travel demand model. 
 
II-B4 Travel Surveys- No tasks foreseen. 

54



    5 

 

II-B5 Forecast of Data to Horizon Year-No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-B6 Community Goals and Objectives- Monitor public input as it pertains to goals and 
objectives set forth in the adopted Metropolitan Transportation Plan. Implementation of the 
Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B7 Forecast of Future Year Travel Patterns- No tasks foreseen. 
 
II-B-8 Capacity Deficiency Analysis- Identify areas of deficient capacity through use of travel 
demand model for further analysis as potential metropolitan transportation improvement 
projects. 
 
II-B9 Highway Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP)- Identification of highway 
deficiencies, priorities, and proposed highway improvement solutions and strategies.  
Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the MTP. Implementation of the 
Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B10 Transit Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan- Identify public transportation 
deficiencies, priorities, and proposed transit improvement solutions for inclusion in the 
update of the MTP.  Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the update 
of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B11 Bicycle and Pedestrian Element of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan- Identify 
bicycle deficiencies, priorities, and proposed bicycle and pedestrian improvement solutions 
and strategies.  Provide documentation of the process and recommendations in the update 
of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B12 Airport/Air Travel Element of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify airport 
and air service deficiencies, priorities, and proposed airport and air service improvement 
solutions and strategies.  Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the 
update of the MTP. 
 
II-B13 Collector Street Element of Metropolitan Transportation Plan- Develop regionally 
acceptable collector street policies and program recommendations for inclusion in the 
update of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B14 Rail, Waterway and Other Elements of Metropolitan Transportation Plan - Identify rail 
and waterway deficiencies, priorities, and proposed rail and waterway improvement 
solutions and strategies.  Provide documentation of process and recommendations in the 
update of the MTP.  
 
II-B15 Freight Movement/Mobility Planning- Identification of freight movement deficiencies, 
priorities, and proposed improvement solutions and strategies.  Provide documentation of 
process and recommendations in the update of the MTP. Implementation of the 
Performance Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 

55



    6 

 

II-B16 Financial Planning- Develop realistic, best estimates of funding sources available and 
project cost estimates throughout the forecast years for the MTP. Ensure fiscal constraint in 
the update of the MTP. Implementation of the Performance Measures from the FAST ACT.  
 
II-B17 Congestion Management Strategies- Develop strategies to address and manage 
congestion by increasing transportation system supply, reducing demand by application of 
alternative mode solutions, and transportation system management strategies. Evaluate 
strategies developed for the Congestion Management Process. Document process and 
solutions in the update of the MTP and CMP reports. Implementation of the Performance 
Measures from the FAST ACT. 
 
II-B-18 Air Quality Planning/ Conformity Analysis- No tasks foreseen. 
 
III-A Planning Work Program- Evaluation of FY 2021 PWP and development of FY 2022 
PWP. 
 

III-B Transportation Improvement Program- Review and amend the 2020-2029 
Transportation Improvement Program on an as needed basis. Assist in the development of 
the 2023-2032 Transportation Improvement Program.  
 
III-C1 Title VI Compliance-Work to insure compliance with the requirements of Title VI in 
urban area policies and practices.  
 
III-C2 Environmental Justice- Analysis and outreach to insure that transportation plans and 
projects comply with Environmental Justice policies. 
 
III-C3 MBE Planning- Activities to encourage participation of minority-owned business 
enterprises in contractual and supply opportunities. 
 

III-C4 Planning for the Elderly and Disabled- Ensure the special needs of the elderly and 
disabled are addressed in all transportation planning projects. 
 

II-C5 Safety/Drug Control Planning- No tasks foreseen. 
 

III-C6 Public Involvement- Extensive Public Participation effort will be carried out to solicit 
input and gauge public input for planning studies the within the Wilmington Urban Area 
MPO’s planning area boundary. 
 
III-C7 Private Sector Participation- Activities to encourage private sector participation in 
planning and project activities. 
 

III-D1 Transportation Enhancement Planning- No tasks foreseen. 
 

II-D2 Environmental and Pre-TIP Planning- Conduct environmental analysis and planning for 
the development of transportation projects in the Wilmington Urban Area. 
 

III-D3 Special Studies- Consultant will be contracted to assist in the completion of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  Upcoming special studies will include the purchase of 
Streetlight data, a future street plan in Pender County, and a MPO strategic update. 

56



    7 

 

III-D4 Statewide and Regional Planning- Coordination of urban area activities with statewide 
and regional initiatives. 
 

III-E Management and Operations- Required ongoing administrative and operational tasks 
to support MPO committees and reporting requirements. 

57



    8 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code II-A-5 

Title Transit System Data 

Task Objective  Collect and analyze data for route planning and 
submission to NTD 

Tangible Product Expected Accurate data from multiple data collection 
devices onboard Wave Transit vehicles and 
other sources to ensure compliance with 
National Transit Database requirements   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Collection of data and submission to NTD 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 1,200 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 1,200 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 9,600 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



    9 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code II-B-6 

Title Community Goals & Objectives 

Task Objective  Interpret and communicate with members of 
the Authority and WMPO TCC and TAC 
adopted planning documents defining 
community goals and objectives   

Tangible Product Expected Service offerings that are compliant with 
adopted plans that outlined the goals of the 
community for public transportation in the 
region   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Communication of goals and objectives to 
decision makers and the public 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 

Section 5303 Local 10% 400 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 400 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 3,200 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 

Additional Funds - Local 100% 

59



    10 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code II-B-10 

Title Transit Element of the LRTP 

Task Objective  Provide input to CAC, TCC and TAC regarding 
long range transit plans for the region 

Tangible Product Expected Informed decisions regarding long range public 
transportation plans leading to a realistic 
planning document for the region   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Provided input and educated decision makers 
regarding the federal and state public 
transportation program 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 400 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 400 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 3,200 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60



    11 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code II-B-16 

Title Financial Planning 

Task Objective  Plan capital and operating cost estimates to 
ensure fiscal compliance and maintain the 
adopted level of transit service  

Tangible Product Expected Short range financial plans based on current 
federal and state legislation to ensure that 
transit services are provided in a consistent 
manner utilizing the most economical and 
efficient methods 

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Financial planning of the public transportation 
program 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20% 

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80% 

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20% 

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80% 

Section 5303 Local 10% 800 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10% 

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80% 

Additional Funds - Local 100% 

61



    12 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration  

Task Code III-C-1 

Title Title VI 

Task Objective  Interpret and prepare Title VI documents and 
monitor Title VI efforts to ensure compliance 
with FTA approved Title VI program 

Tangible Product Expected Compliance with the Title VI circular and 
adopted Title VI program   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Title VI program development and compliance 
efforts 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 800 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62



    13 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code III-C-3 

Title Minority Business Enterprise 

Task Objective  Implement and monitor the MBE program to 
be compliant with adopted MBE program, 
update MBE goals as required, and undertake 
MBE outreach 

Tangible Product Expected MBE participation that is equal to or greater 
than the adopted and approved MBE goal   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work MBE program oversight 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 800 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



    14 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code III-C-6 

Title Public Involvement 

Task Objective  Hear and analyze public comment from 
monthly meetings of the Authority, email 
comments, written comments and other 
comments outlined in the Authority Public 
Involvement Program.  Work with public to 
update LCP, LRTP, SRTP and other planning 
documents. 

Tangible Product Expected Make recommendations to appropriate parties 
from comments made to the Authority by 
members of the community   

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Public comment  

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 800 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 800 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 6,400 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



    15 

 

MPO Wilmington 

FTA Code 442100 - Program Support Administration 

Task Code III-E 

Title Management & Operations 

Task Objective  MPO and CFPTA staff will conduct required 
administrative and operational tasks to support 
Wave Transit. Periodical reviews of 
administrative agreements and procedures. 
Staff will perform daily operations to 
disseminate planning information to the 
TAC/TCC committee members, the public 
and/or other agencies. 

Tangible Product Expected Compliance with FTA and NCDOT 
requirements, well informed community and 
elected officials about the public transit 
program, and functional system that meets the 
needs of the community    

Expected Completion Date of 
Products 

June 2021 

Previous Work Collection of data and submission to NTD 

Relationship This is a collaborative effort of the Wilmington 
MPO and the Cape Fear Public Transportation 
Authority (Wave Transit) 

Responsible Agency CFPTA 

SPR - Highway - NCDOT 20%  

SPR - Highway - F11WA 80%  

Section 104 (f) PL, Local 20%  

Section 104 (f) PL, FHWA 80%  

Section 5303 Local 10% 4,136 

Section 5303 NCDOT 10% 4,136 

Section 5303 FTA 80% 33,086 

Section 5307 Transit - Local 10%  

Section 5307 Transit - NCDOT 
10% 

 

Section 5307 Transit - FTA 80%  

Additional Funds - Local 100%  

 

 

 

 

 

 

65



W
ilm

in
gt

o
n

 U
rb

an
 A

re
a 

M
e

tr
o

p
o

lit
an

 P
la

n
n

in
g 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
FY

2
0

2
1

 U
n

if
ie

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
W

o
rk

 P
ro

gr
am

D
ra

ft
: J

an
u

ar
y 

10
, 2

02
0

TA
SK

TA
SK

C
O

D
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

LO
C

A
L

FH
W

A
To

ta
l

LO
C

A
L

FH
W

A
To

ta
l

LO
C

A
L

N
C

D
O

T
FT

A
To

ta
l

LO
C

A
L

N
C

D
O

T
To

ta
l

LO
C

A
L

N
C

D
O

T
FE

D
ER

A
L

TO
TA

L

20
%

80
%

10
0%

20
%

80
%

10
0%

10
%

10
%

80
%

10
0%

50
%

50
%

10
0%

II
-A

SU
R

V
EI

LL
A

N
C

E 
O

F 
C

H
A

N
G

E

II-
A

-1
Tr

af
fi

c 
V

o
lu

m
e 

C
o

u
n

ts
13

,0
00

   
   

 
52

,0
00

   
   

 
65

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
13

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
52

,0
00

   
   

 
65

,0
00

   
   

 

II-
A

-2
V

eh
ic

le
 M

ile
s 

o
f 

Tr
av

el
50

   
   

   
   

  
20

0
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
50

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   

II-
A

-3
St

re
et

 S
ys

te
m

s 
C

h
an

ge
s

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II-
A

-4
Tr

af
fi

c 
A

cc
id

en
ts

50
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

50
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

II-
A

-5
Tr

an
si

t 
Sy

st
em

 D
at

a
10

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

20
0

   
   

   
1,

20
0

   
   

   
9,

60
0

   
   

   
12

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
1,

90
0

   
   

   
1,

20
0

   
   

   
12

,4
00

   
   

 
15

,5
00

   
   

 

II-
A

-6
D

w
el

lin
g 

U
n

it
, P

o
p

. &
 E

m
p

. C
h

an
ge

60
0

   
   

   
   

2,
40

0
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

II-
A

-7
A

ir
 T

ra
ve

l
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

II-
A

-8
V

eh
ic

le
 O

cc
u

p
an

cy
 R

at
es

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II-
A

-9
Tr

av
el

 T
im

e 
St

u
d

ie
s 

50
   

   
   

   
  

20
0

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

50
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

II-
A

-1
0

M
ap

p
in

g
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
15

,2
50

   
   

 
61

,0
00

   
   

 
76

,2
50

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
15

,2
50

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
61

,0
00

   
   

 
76

,2
50

   
   

 

II-
A

-1
1

C
en

tr
al

 A
re

a 
P

ar
ki

n
g 

In
ve

n
to

ry
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

II-
A

-1
2

B
ik

e 
&

 P
e

d
. F

ac
ili

ti
es

 In
ve

n
to

ry
80

0
   

   
   

   
3,

20
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
3,

20
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
-B

LO
N

G
 R

A
N

G
E 

TR
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
-B

-1
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 o
f 

B
as

e 
Ye

ar
 D

at
a

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II-
B

-2
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 o

f 
N

et
w

o
rk

 D
at

a
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

II-
B

-3
Tr

av
el

 M
o

d
el

 U
p

d
at

es
10

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
10

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   

II-
B

-4
Tr

av
el

 S
u

rv
ey

s
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

II-
B

-5
Fo

re
ca

st
 o

f 
D

at
a 

to
 H

o
ri

zo
n

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

II-
B

-6
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
G

o
al

s 
&

 O
b

je
ct

iv
es

2,
00

0
   

   
   

8,
00

0
10

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
3,

20
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
2,

40
0

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
11

,2
00

   
   

 
14

,0
00

   
   

 

II-
B

-7
Fo

re
ca

st
 o

f 
Fu

tu
re

l T
ra

ve
l P

at
te

rn
s

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II-
B

-8
C

ap
ac

it
y 

D
ef

ic
ie

n
cy

 A
n

al
ys

is
20

0
80

0
1,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-9
H

ig
h

w
ay

 E
le

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

 L
R

TP
4,

80
0

19
,2

00
24

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
4,

80
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
19

,2
00

   
   

 
24

,0
00

   
   

 

II-
B

-1
0

Tr
an

si
t 

El
em

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

LR
TP

40
0

1,
60

0
2,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
3,

20
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
4,

80
0

   
   

   
6,

00
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-1
1

B
ic

yc
le

 &
 P

e
d

. E
le

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
LR

TP
4,

00
0

16
,0

00
20

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
16

,0
00

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

 

II-
B

-1
2

A
ir

p
o

rt
/A

ir
 T

ra
ve

l E
le

m
en

t 
o

f 
LR

TP
1,

00
0

4,
00

0
5,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-1
3

C
o

lle
ct

o
r 

St
re

et
 E

le
m

en
t 

o
f 

LR
TP

60
0

2,
40

0
3,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
2,

40
0

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-1
4

R
ai

l, 
W

at
er

 o
r 

o
th

er
 m

o
d

e 
o

f 
LR

TP
1,

50
0

6,
00

0
7,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

   
   

   
7,

50
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-1
5

Fr
ei

gh
t 

M
o

ve
m

en
t/

M
o

b
ili

ty
 P

la
n

n
in

g
1,

60
0

6,
40

0
8,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
1,

60
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
6,

40
0

   
   

   
8,

00
0

   
   

   

II-
B

-1
6

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g
40

0
1,

60
0

2,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

6,
40

0
   

   
   

8,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
 

II-
B

-1
7

C
o

n
ge

st
io

n
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gi
es

1,
20

0
4,

80
0

6,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

1,
20

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

4,
80

0
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

II-
B

-1
8

A
ir

 Q
u

al
. P

la
n

n
in

g/
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y 

A
n

al
.

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
I-

A
P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

22
4

   
   

   
   

89
6

   
   

   
   

1,
12

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

22
4

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

89
6

   
   

   
   

1,
12

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
I-

B
TR

A
N

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 IM

P
R

O
V

EM
EN

T 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

50
0

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
50

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
50

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
I-

C
C

V
L 

R
G

TS
. C

M
P

./
O

TR
. R

EG
. R

EQ
S.

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 

III
-C

-1
Ti

tl
e 

V
I

10
0

   
   

   
   

40
0

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

6,
40

0
   

   
   

8,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

90
0

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

6,
80

0
   

   
   

8,
50

0
   

   
   

III
-C

-2
En

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l J
u

st
ic

e
20

0
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   

III
-C

-3
M

in
o

ri
ty

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

En
te

rp
ri

se
10

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
6,

40
0

   
   

   
8,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
90

0
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

   
   

   
8,

50
0

   
   

   

III
-C

-4
P

la
n

n
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
El

d
er

ly
 &

 D
is

ab
le

d
50

   
   

   
   

  
20

0
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
50

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   

III
-C

-5
Sa

fe
ty

/D
ru

g 
C

o
n

tr
o

l P
la

n
n

in
g

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

III
-C

-6
P

u
b

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t
1,

00
0

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
6,

40
0

   
   

   
8,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
   

   
10

,4
00

   
   

 
13

,0
00

   
   

 

III
-C

-7
P

ri
va

te
 S

e
ct

o
r 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

25
0

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

1,
25

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

1,
25

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
I-

D
IN

C
ID

EN
TA

L 
P

LN
G

./
P

R
O

JE
C

T 
D

EV
.

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

III
-D

-1
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

t 
P

ln
g.

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

III
-D

-2
En

vi
ro

. A
n

al
ys

is
 &

 P
re

-T
IP

 P
ln

g.
10

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
10

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   

III
-D

-3
Sp

ec
ia

l S
tu

d
ie

s:
 S

ta
ff

 T
im

e 
/ 

P
la

n
n

in
g

2,
00

0
   

   
   

8,
00

0
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

8,
00

0
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
 

III
-D

-3
Sp

ec
ia

l S
tu

d
ie

s:
 S

tr
ee

tl
ig

h
t 

D
at

a 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

   
   

 
40

,0
00

   
   

 
50

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

,0
00

   
   

 
50

,0
00

   
   

 

III
-D

-3
Sp

ec
ia

l S
tu

d
ie

s:
 P

e
n

d
er

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

u
tu

re
 P

la
n

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
   

   
 

40
,0

00
   

   
 

50
,0

00
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

40
,0

00
   

   
 

50
,0

00
   

   
 

III
-D

-3
Sp

ec
ia

l S
tu

d
ie

s:
 S

tr
at

eg
ie

s
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
8,

00
0

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

 

III
-D

-4
R

eg
io

n
al

 o
r 

St
at

ew
id

e 
P

la
n

n
in

g
10

0
   

   
   

   
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
10

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

II
I-

E
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
&

 O
P

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

33
,5

70
13

4,
28

1
   

  
16

7,
85

1
   

  
85

,6
88

   
   

 
34

2,
75

1
   

  
42

8,
43

9
   

  
4,

13
6

   
   

   
4,

13
6

   
   

   
33

,0
86

   
   

 
41

,3
57

   
   

 
61

,8
00

   
   

 
61

,8
00

   
   

 
12

3,
60

0
   

  
18

5,
19

4
   

  
4,

13
6

   
   

   
57

1,
91

8
   

  
76

1,
24

7
   

  

TO
TA

LS
$7

0,
64

4
$2

82
,5

77
$3

53
,2

21
$1

23
,5

38
$4

94
,1

51
$6

17
,6

89
$9

,3
36

$9
,3

36
$7

4,
68

6
$9

3,
35

7
$6

1,
80

0
$6

1,
80

0
$1

23
,6

00
$2

65
,3

18
$9

,3
36

$9
13

,2
14

$1
,1

87
,8

67 1
6

TD
M

 

Tr
an

si
t 

TA
SK

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

W
B

S 
#:

 
W

B
S 

#:
 

W
B

S 
#:

 
W

B
S 

#:
 

Tr
an

si
t 

/ 
H

ig
h

w
ay

SE
C

. 1
04

 (
f)

 P
L 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 /

 T
ra

n
si

t

ST
B

G
P

-D
A

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 /

 T
ra

n
si

t

SE
C

TI
O

N
  5

30
3

66



1
7
  

 A
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 D

B
E

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ti

n
g

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

F
Y

 2
0

2
1
 

 N
a
m

e
 o

f 
M

P
O

: 
W

ilm
in

g
to

n
 U

rb
a
n
 A

re
a
 M

P
O

 
 P
e
rs

o
n
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 F

o
rm

: 
M

ik
e
 K

o
zl

o
sk

y
 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 N

u
m

b
e
r:

 9
1
0
-3

4
2
-2

7
8
1
 

 

P
ro

s
p

e
c
tu

s
 

T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

 
P

ro
s
p

e
c
tu

s
 

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ti

n
g

 O
u

t 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ti

n
g

 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 (

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t,

 

e
tc

.)
 

F
e

d
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 O

u
t 

T
o

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 O

u
t 

II
I-

D
-3

 
S
p
e
ci

a
l 
S
tu

d
ie

s 
C
it
y
 o

f 
W

ilm
in

g
to

n
 

C
o
n
su

lt
a
n
t 

$
4
0
,0

0
0
 

$
5
0
,0

0
0
 

II
I-

D
-3

 
S
p
e
ci

a
l 
S
tu

d
ie

s 
C
it
y
 o

f 
W

ilm
in

g
to

n
 

C
o
n
su

lt
a
n
t 

$
4
0
,0

0
0
 

$
5
0
,0

0
0
 

II
I-

D
-3

 
S
p
e
ci

a
l 
S
tu

d
ie

s 
C
it
y
 o

f 
W

ilm
in

g
to

n
 

C
o
n
su

lt
a
n
t 

$
8
,0

0
0
 

$
1
0
,0

0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

67



18 

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

BOARD 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FY 2021 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 

FOR THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides 

transportation planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of 

Kure Beach, Town of Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, 

New Hanover County, Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation 

Authority and the North Carolina Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, a comprehensive and continuing transportation planning program must be carried 

out cooperatively in order to ensure that funds for transportation projects are effectively allocated 

to the Wilmington Urban Area; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Wilmington has been designated as the recipient of Federal Transit 

Administration Metropolitan Planning Program (Section 5303) funds and Federal Highway 

Administration Metropolitan Planning (Section 104(f)) funds; and 

WHEREAS, members of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Board agree that the Planning Work Program will effectively advance transportation planning for 

State Fiscal Year 2020-2021.  

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 

Planning Organization hereby endorses the FY 2020-2021 Planning Work Program for the 

Wilmington Urban Area. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 

Planning Organization’s Board on February 26, 2020.

*************************** 

I, David Piepmeyer, Chair of the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan

Planning Organization do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of an 

excerpt from the minutes of a meeting of the Board, duly held on this the 26th day of

February,  2020.

  _____________________________ 

David Piepmeyer, Chair

       *************************** 

  Subscribed and sworn to me this the _____ day of________, 2020. 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public 

My commission expires___________

68



19 

WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

BOARD 

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN 

PLANNING ORGANIZATION’S TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides 

transportation planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of 

Kure Beach, Town of Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, 

New Hanover County, Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation 

Authority and the North Carolina Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found that the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 

Organization is conducting transportation planning in a continuous, cooperative, and 

comprehensive manner in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 1607; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has found the Transportation Planning Process to be in full compliance 

with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Title VI Assurance executed by each State 

under 23 U.S.C. 324 and 29 U.S.C. 794; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered how the Transportation Planning Process will affect the 

involvement of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the FHWA and the FTA funded planning 

projects (Section 1003(b) of ISTEA of 1991 (Pub. L. 102-240), Sec. 105(f), Pub. L. 97-424, 96 

Stat. 2100, 49 CFR part 23); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered how the Transportation Planning Process will affect the 

elderly and the disabled per the provision of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 

101-336, 104 Stat. 327, as amended) and the U.S. DOT implementing regulations (49 CFR parts 

27, 37, and 38); and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Plan has a planning horizon year of 2040, and 

meets all the requirements for an adequate Metropolitan Transportation Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan 

Planning Organization hereby certifies the transportation planning process for the Wilmington 

Metropolitan Planning Organization on this the 26th day of February, 2020.

David Piepmeyer, Chair

Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

69



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
BOARD 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A CAP ON THE NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS AND 
CREATING A DAY OF REGISTRATION FEE FOR THE ANNUAL RIVER TO SEA 

BIKE RIDE 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization provides transportation 
planning services for the City of Wilmington, Town of Carolina Beach, Town of Kure Beach, Town of 
Wrightsville Beach, Town of Belville, Town of Leland, Town of Navassa, New Hanover County, 
Brunswick County, Pender County, Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority and the North Carolina 
Board of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the River to Sea Bike Ride is a long-standing tradition in the Wilmington area community 
where bicyclists of all ages and levels of expertise may participate in a group ride along the route of the 
historic Wilmington Beach Trolley; and 

WHEREAS, the safety of participants is the top priority of this event; and 

WHEREAS, the Wilmington Police Department, Wrightsville Beach Police Department, New Hanover 
County Sherriff’s Office, and Cape Fear Cyclists who provide support during this event advise the number 
of participants should not exceed 450 for the purpose of safety of the bicyclists; and 

WHEREAS, the River to Sea Bike Ride continues to grow in popularity each year and may easily exceed 
well over 450 participants if a cap is not placed on the event; and 

WHEREAS, in attempt to regulate the number of participants in the River to Sea Bike ride, the River to 
Sea Bike Ride planning committee recommends to create a maximum number of online registrants prior to 
the event and charge a fee of $5 to day-of registrants.  

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization hereby supports limiting the River to Sea Bike Ride participants by closing online registration 
when is reaches 450 and requiring participants who register the day-of the event to pay a $5 fee. 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Board on February 26, 2020. 

_________________________________ 
David Piepmeyer, Chair 

_________________________________ 
Mike Kozlosky, Secretary 

70



  
Pr

op
os

ed
 R

ev
is

io
ns

 to
 2

01
8-

20
27

 a
nd

 2
02

0-
20

29
 S

TI
P/

M
PO

 T
IP

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
 

ST
IP

/M
PO

 T
IP

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

# 
20

-2
 

(F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

20
) 

 * 
M

-0
53

9D
IV

 
ST

AT
EW

ID
E 

PR
O

J.C
AT

EG
O

RY
 

DI
VI

SI
O

N
 

  

VA
RI

O
U

S,
 E

N
VI

RO
NM

EN
TA

L 
M

IT
IG

AT
IO

N
 A

ND
 

M
IN

IM
IZ

AT
IO

N
.  

AD
D 

FU
N

DS
 N

O
T 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

PR
O

GR
AM

M
ED

. 

 
 

M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N 

      

FY
 2

02
0 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
1 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
2 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
3 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
4 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
5 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
6 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
7 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
8 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
9 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
0 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
1 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
2 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
3,

90
0,

00
0 

  

 

* 
M

-0
53

9R
EG

 
ST

AT
EW

ID
E 

PR
O

J.C
AT

EG
O

RY
 

RE
GI

O
N

AL
 

VA
RI

O
U

S,
 E

N
VI

RO
NM

EN
TA

L 
M

IT
IG

AT
IO

N
 A

ND
 

M
IN

IM
IZ

AT
IO

N
.  

AD
D 

FU
N

DS
 N

O
T 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

PR
O

GR
AM

M
ED

. 

 
 

M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N 

               

FY
 2

02
0 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
1 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
2 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
3 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
4 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
5 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
6 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
7 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
8 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
9 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
0 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
1 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
2 

- (
T)

 $
30

0,
00

0 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
3,

90
0,

00
0 

  
    

 

71



         
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

* 
M

-0
53

9S
W

 
ST

AT
EW

ID
E 

PR
O

J.C
AT

EG
O

RY
 

ST
AT

EW
ID

E 

VA
RI

O
U

S,
 E

N
VI

RO
NM

EN
TA

L 
M

IT
IG

AT
IO

N
 A

ND
 

M
IN

IM
IZ

AT
IO

N
.  

AD
D 

FU
N

DS
 N

O
T 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

PR
O

GR
AM

M
ED

 

 
M

IT
IG

AT
IO

N 
 

FY
 2

02
0 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
1 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
2 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
3 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
4 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
5 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
6 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
7 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
8 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

02
9 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
0 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
1 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
 

FY
 2

03
2 

- (
T)

 $
40

0,
00

0 
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
5,

20
0,

00
0 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

72



 
   

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: WMPO Board Members 

From: Abby Lorenzo, Senior Transportation Planner 

Date: February 5, 2020 

Subject: *Draft* WMPO Potential Prioritization 6.0 Aviation Submittals 

 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Strategic Prioritization Office of 
Transportation (SPOT) released a schedule outlining the Prioritization 6.0 (P6.0) process. The 
P6.0 process includes a submittal window of October 2019 through May 2020 to allow MPOs, 
RPOs, and Division Engineers to submit projects for evaluation. The WMPO Board may submit 
up to 19 projects for each mode of transportation. 

Below please find the recommendation for submittal to NCDOT for P6.0 Aviation projects. 

 
Aviation 
1. 1st General Aviation (GA) Hangar Taxilane 
2. Midfield Taxiway Improvements 
3. Perimeter Road Improvements 
4. Runway 24/Taxiway Extension 
5. Runway Protection Zone (RPZ) 
6. Runway 35 Wind Cone/PAPI Replacement 
7. Emergency Boat Ramp Access Launch 
8. Runway 6‐24 Blast Pad 
9. 1st Paved Aircraft Taxi Lane  
10. Runway 6 MALSR Catwalk 
11. Runway 17/35 Blast Pads 
 

73



74



 
 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: WMPO Board Members 

From: Abby Lorenzo, Senior Transportation Planner 

Date: February 5, 2020 

Subject: *Draft* WMPO Potential Prioritization 6.0 Bicycle and Pedestrian Submittals 

 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Strategic Prioritization Office of 
Transportation (SPOT) released a schedule outlining the Prioritization 6.0 (P6.0) process. The 
P6.0 process will include a submittal window in October 1, 2019 through May 1, 2020 to allow 
MPOs, RPOs, and Division Engineers to submit projects for evaluation. The WMPO Board may 
submit up to 19 projects for each mode of transportation. The following list of projects are derived 
from Cape Fear Transportation 2040 Bicycle and Pedestrian project list, and in coordination with 
the WMPO’s member jurisdictions. 

1. BP-37 Village Road Sidewalk (Lossen Lane to Wayne Street) 
2. BP-47 US 17 & Old Waterford Way/Ploof Rd Intersection 
3. BP-59 US 17 & W Gate Drive/Grandiflora Drive Intersection 
4. BP-61 US 17 & Provision Parkway Intersection 

 

75



76



 
 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: WMPO Board Members 

From: Abby Lorenzo, Senior Transportation Planner 

Date: February 5, 2020 

Subject: *DRAFT* WMPO Potential Prioritization 6.0 Rail Submittals 

 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Strategic Prioritization Office of 
Transportation (SPOT) released a schedule outlining the Prioritization 6.0 (P6.0) process. The 
P6.0 process includes a submittal window of October 2019 through May 2020 to allow MPOs, 
RPOs, and Division Engineers to submit projects for evaluation. The WMPO Board may submit 
up to 19 projects for each mode of transportation. 

Below please find the recommendation for submittal to NCDOT for P6.0 Rail projects.  

1. FR-5 and FR-6: US 421 railroad crossing safety improvements south of I-140/Dan 
Cameron Bridge and US 421 railroad extension from Invista to Pender Commerce Park 

2. FR-16: Freight rail connection from Castle Hayne to Wallace 
3. FR-17: Construct rail across the Cape Fear River between NC Port of Wilmington and 

Davis Yard 
4. FR-24: Wilmington Multimodal Transportation Center 

77



78



 
 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: WMPO Board Members 

From: Abby Lorenzo, Senior Transportation Planner 

Date: February 5, 2020 

Subject: *Draft* WMPO Potential Prioritization 6.0 Public Transportation Submittals 

 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Strategic Prioritization Office of 
Transportation (SPOT) released a schedule outlining the Prioritization 6.0 (P6.0) process. The 
P6.0 process includes a submittal window of October 2019 through May 2020 to allow MPOs, 
RPOs, and Division Engineers to submit projects for evaluation. The WMPO Board may submit 
up to 19 projects for each mode of transportation. 

Below please find the recommendation for submittal to NCDOT for P6.0 Transit projects. 

1. Route 101 Amenity Upgrades (Princess Place) 
2. Route 103 Amenity Upgrades (Oleander East) 
3. Route 104 Amenity Upgrades (Northeast) 
4. Route 106 Amenity Upgrades (Shipyard Boulevard) 
5. Route 201 Amenity Upgrades (Carolina Beach Road) 
6. Route 202 Amenity Upgrades (Oleander West) 
7. Route 203 Amenity Upgrades (Trolley Route) 
8. Route 204 Amenity Upgrades (Brunswick Connector 
9. Route 205 Amenity Upgrades (Long Leaf Park) 
10. Route 210 Amenity Upgrades (South 17th Street) 

79



80



81



82



83



 
 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To: WMPO Board Members 

From: Abby Lorenzo, Senior Transportation Planner 

Date: February 5, 2020 

Subject: *Draft* WMPO Potential Prioritization 6.0 Roadway Submittals 

 

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) Strategic Prioritization Office of 
Transportation (SPOT) released a schedule outlining the Prioritization 6.0 (P6.0) process. The 
P6.0 process includes a submittal window of October 2019 through May 2020 to allow MPOs, 
RPOs, and Division Engineers to submit projects for evaluation. The WMPO Board may submit 
up to 19 projects for each mode of transportation. 

Below please find the recommendation for submittal to NCDOT for P6.0 Roadway projects. 
 
New Submittals: 

1. R‐4 Castle Hayne Road Widening (US74/MLK Jr. Parkway to Holly Shelter Road) – 3 lane cross‐
section 

2. R‐9 US 17 BUS/Market Street Road Diet (17th Street to Covil Avenue) 
3. R‐33 Kerr Avenue Widening (Patrick Avenue to Wrightsville Avenue) 
4. R‐34 Old Fayetteville Road Widening (Village Road to US74/76/Andrew Jackson Highway) 
5. R‐35 N 23rd Street Widening (NC 133/Castle Hayne Road to US 74/MLK Jr Parkway) 
6. R‐36 NC210 Improvements (NC210/Island Creek Road to US17) 
7. R‐37 Wilshire Boulevard Extension (US 117/132/College Road to MacMillan Avenue) 
8. R‐39 Country Club/Doral Drive and Sloop Point Loop Road  
9. R‐44 Old Fayetteville Road Interchange 
10. R‐47 US 117/Shipyard Boulevard Access Management (US 421/Carolina Beach Road to Rutledge 

Drive) 
11. R‐49 US 117/Shipyard Boulevard Widening (US 421/Carolina Beach Road to US 117/Shipyard 

Boulevard) 
12. R‐50 Burnett Boulevard and Myers Street Intersection 
13. R‐51 US 117/Shipyard Boulevard Speed Sensors and Warning Activation at NC Port of Wilmington 

(from US 421/Carolina Beach Road to River Road) 
14. R‐52 US17 to NC133 Connection (US17 to NC133) 
15. R‐53 NC133 River Road Widening (US17/74/76 to Westport Drive) 

84



 
 

 

 
2 

 

16. R‐53 NC133 River Road Widening (Westport Drive to Rabon Way SE) 
 

85



86



WILMINGTON URBAN AREA MPO 
FEBRUARY 2020 

 
2045 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN 
Project Description/Scope:  The Wilmington Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization is required 
by federal law to update the Metropolitan Transportation Plan every 5 years. The last plan was adopted 
by the MPO Board on November 18, 2015. The next update is required to be adopted by November 
2020. This plan will guide the regional transportation priorities and actions, and be used for project 
selection in the State/Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Programs. The MPO Board appointed a 
Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) to help guide the development of this plan. A four month public 
outreach period was held between April 3, 2018 and July 31, 2018. During this period, there were 2,287 
transportation survey responses, 563 comments on the public input map tool, and 4,554 votes on map 
comments, totaling 7,404 responses collected. In July 2018, the six modal subcommittees began 
meeting with the initial task of developing modal goals and objectives, which were completed in 
October 2018 and officially adopted by the Board in November 2018. The Modal Subcommittees have 
completed scoring criteria, evaluation of projects and development of the draft policies. The CAC, TCC 
and Board received the financial forecasts and potential alternative funding sources in March 2019. The 
consultant completed the project cost estimates and alternative funding forecasts in June 2019. A red 
line, fiscal constraint analysis of ranked modal projects were prepared and presented by staff to the 
CAC, TCC, and Board in July. The WMPO Board proposed changes at its August meeting and adopted a 
resolution endorsing the amended draft project lists in September 2019. In November 2019 the Board 
passed a resolution to include the estimated toll revenues for the Cape Fear Crossing project within the 
fiscally constrained projects list as a supported alternative form of funding. WMPO planning staff is 
working on finalizing draft plan. 
 
Next Steps: 
• Release of draft plan to public in March 2020 for 30-day public comment period 
• Revisions to draft plan based on public comments and approval by WMPO Board in Spring 2020 
• Presentation of plan to WMPO members in Summer 2020 
• Adoption of final plan in October 2020 
 
SITE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW  
Project Descriptions/Scope: The Wilmington Urban Area MPO assists with site development and 
Transportation Impact Analysis review for the MPO’s member jurisdictions. During the last month, staff 
has reviewed the following development proposals: 
 

• New Hanover County Development Plan Reviews: 2 reviews 
• New Hanover County Informal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews 
• New Hanover Concept Reviews:  0 review  
• Town of Leland Formal Reviews: 2 reviews 
• Town of Leland Informal Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Town of Navassa Formal Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Town of Navassa Informal Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Town of Navassa Concept Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Town of Carolina Beach Formal Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Town of Carolina Beach Informal Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Brunswick County Formal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Brunswick County Informal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews 

87



• TIA Reviews: 15 total  (New Hanover County 3,  City of Wilmington 8, Carolina Beach 0, Leland 1, 
Navassa 0, and Pender County 3, Brunswick County 0) ;  new 2 and  ongoing 13 

• Pender County Development Plan Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Pender County Informal Plan Reviews: 0 reviews 
• Pender County Concept Reviews: 0 reviews 
• City of Wilmington Formal Reviews: 59 (7 new,  52 on-going)  
• City of Wilmington Informal Reviews: 27 (3 new, 24 on-going) 
• City of Wilmington Concept Reviews: 6 ( 5 new concept reviews- 1 on-going concept)  
• COW Project Releases:   5 Full releases 

 
STBGP-DA/TASA-DA   FY 2013 to Present 
STBGP-DA 
 
U-5534C - WRIGHTSVILLE AVENUE/GREENVILLE AVENUE TO HINTON AVENUE  
Project Descriptions/Scope: The project is for construction of intersection re-alignment improvements 
at the intersection of Wrightsville Avenue/Greenville Avenue and bike lanes and sidewalks along 
Greenville Avenue from Wrightsville Avenue to Hinton Avenue.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Complete review of final design package and submit to NCDOT for review– Spring 2020 
• NCDOT final design approval and City to request Construction Funds Authorization – Summer 

2020 
• Begin Construction – Late 2020 

 
U-5534D - TOWN OF LELAND - OLD FAYETTEVILLE ROAD MUP  
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for design and construction of a ten foot (10') wide multi use 
path, separate but adjacent to Old Fayetteville Road, beginning at or around the corner of the Leland 
Town Hall Campus and ending at the driveway of the North Brunswick High School. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• ROW certification has been issued 
•     Construction funds have been requested for release 
• Updated PCE approved on December 4, 2018 
• Davenport identified potential utility conflicts; The Town has authorized Level A – S.U.E. services 

to be performed to verify where conflicts exist; AECOM will revise plans to reflect any utility 
relocations that must be done; revised plans must then be approved by NCDOT. 

• Supplemental underground utility conflict drawings were sent to Ron VanCleef on September 
30, 2019 and these drawings were approved on October 17, 2019.  

• Supplemental Agreement #3 dated March 28, 2019 extends project completion deadline to July 
1, 2020.   

• On November 21, 2019, MPO requested DOT to issue Supplemental Agreement #4 to provide 
supplemental appropriation of federal funds for the additional amount of $517,477 with an 
additional local match for the amount of $129,370.  The Town also requested an extension of 
the project completion deadline to June 30, 2021. The Town is waiting on Supplemental 
Agreement #4. 

88



• Town sent the following documents to Ron VanCleef on November 12, 2019: VCER-1 Form, 
NPDES Stormwater Certification, DOT Encroachment Agreement with plans.  Waiting to receive 
signed encroachment agreement from DOT. 

• Received plan comments from NCDOT’s Traffic Engineering Division pertaining to the 
encroachment agreement plans. AECOM will address the comments and send revisions for 
approval. 

• Bid and award timeline will depend upon receipt of signed encroachment agreement and 
Supplemental Agreement #4; prefer to bid this and projects U-5534I, J and K at the same time.  

 
U-5534F – CITY OF WILMINGTON – PARK AVENUE MUP – PHASE II  
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for the design and construction of an off-road multi-use path 
between Audubon Boulevard and Kerr Avenue. The right of way certification was received November 2, 
2016.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Plans approved 8/20/19            
• Specification comments received 9/24/19;  
• NCDOT approved final bid proposal on 12/23/19; still need Utility/RR cert 
• Begin Construction – Spring 2020 
• Complete Construction – Fall 2020 
 

U-5534G –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HOOKER ROAD MULTI-USE PATH  
Project Descriptions/Scope: The project consist of the construction of a 10' wide multi-use path along 
Hooker Road from Wrightsville Avenue to Mallard Drive/Rose Ave intersection 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Complete final design package and submit to NCDOT for review–Winter 2019/Spring 2020 
• Update/renew permits – Spring 2020 
• NCDOT final design approval – Spring 2020 
• Right of way acquisition complete  – Fall 2020 
• Begin Construction – Spring 2021 
• Complete Construction – Spring 2022 

 
U-5534H –CITY OF WILMINGTON- HINTON AVE MULTI-USE PATH  
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project consists of the construction of a 10' wide multi-use path along 
Hinton Avenue from Park Avenue to Greenville Avenue. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Complete final design package and submit to NCDOT for review– Winter 2019/Spring 2020 
• Update/renew permits – Spring 2020 
• NCDOT final design approval – Spring 2020 
• Right of way acquisition complete  – Fall 2020 
• Begin Construction – Spring 2021 
• Complete Construction – Spring 2022 

 
U-5534I –TOWN OF LELAND- VILLAGE ROAD MULTI-USE PATH EXTENSION  

89



Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of a 8 foot wide concrete path from the connection at the 
Brunswick Center in Leland across the front of the library property, down Village Road, ending on the 
western edge of the First Baptist Church property before the Sturgeon Creek Bridge. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 
 

• Right of way acquisition underway. Expect to complete acquisition of temporary and permanent 
easements by January 30, 2020. All easements have been acquired. 

• Right of way Certification- TBD 
• Encroachment agreement needed once right-of-way finalized. Encroachment Agreement 

application send to NCDOT on January 7th.  
• Revised 100% plans and specs sent to DOT for final review on December 23, 2019. Comments 

returned on December 30th and January 10th. Revised plans to address latest comments sent to 
NCDOT on January 30th.  

• DOT issued Supplemental Agreement #3 on December 10, 2019 to extend completion deadline 
and provide additional funding; Town returned signed Agreement to DOT on December 19, 
2019; received fully executed copy of Supplemental Agreement #3. 

• Let date will be set to match up with “J” and “K” projects after encroachment agreement and 
right of way certification is issued 

 
U-5534J – TOWN OF LELAND- OLD FAYETTEVILLE LOOP ROAD PEDESTRIAN LOOP  
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of sidewalks in three locations: 1) The construction of an 8 
foot concrete sidewalk along Village Road from Town Hall Drive to the apartment complex and widening 
the existing 5 foot sidewalk in front of the apartment complex to 8 feet. 2) The construction of a 6 foot 
sidewalk along Town Hall Drive from Village Road NE to the sidewalk that exists by the new Town Hall. 3) 
The construction of a 5 foot sidewalk along Old Fayetteville Road from the existing sidewalk in front of 
the apartment complex to Village Road NE. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

•   Right of way acquisition underway. Expect to complete acquisition of temporary and permanent 
easements by February 10, 2020. 

• Right of way Certification- TBD 
• Encroachment agreement needed once right-of-way finalized. Encroachment Agreement 

application send to NCDOT on January 7th.  
• Revised 100% plans and specs sent to DOT for final review on December 23, 2019. Comments 

returned on December 30th and January 10th. Revised plans to address latest comments sent to 
NCDOT on January 30th.  

• DOT issued Supplemental Agreement #3 on December 10, 2019 to extend completion deadline 
and provide additional funding; Town returned signed Agreement to DOT on December 19, 
2019; received fully executed copy of Supplemental Agreement #3. 

• Let date will be set to match up with “I” and “K” projects after encroachment agreement and 
right of way certification is issued 

 
U-5534K – TOWN OF LELAND- LELAND MIDDLE SCHOOL SIDEWALK  
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of 5 foot wide concrete sidewalk adjacent to Old 
Fayetteville Road from Ricefield Branch Road to the US Hwy 74/76 overpass after Glendale Drive with 
connections to Leland Middle School and the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 

90



Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Right of way acquisition underway. Expect to complete acquisition of temporary and permanent 

easements by January 31, 2020. All easements have been acquired. 
• Right of way Certification- TBD 
• Encroachment agreement needed once right-of-way finalized. Encroachment agreement 

application sent to NCDOT on January 7th.  
• Revised 100% plans and specs sent to DOT for final review on December 23, 2019. Comments 

returned on December 30th and January 10th. Revised plans to address latest comments sent to 
NCDOT on January 30th. 

• DOT issued Supplemental Agreement #3 on December 10, 2019 to extend completion deadline 
and provide additional funding; Town returned signed Agreement to DOT on December 19, 
2019; received fully executed copy of Supplemental Agreement #3. 

• Let date will be set to match up with “I” and “J” projects after encroachment agreement and 
right of way certification is issued 

 
U-5534N –CITY OF WILMINGTON- SHIPYARD BOULEVARD SIDEWALK 
Project Description/Scope: The construction of a sidewalk and bus pull-out along Shipyard Boulevard 
between Vance Street and Rutledge Drive. This will be a partnership between the City of Wilmington, 
Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority and Wilmington MPO. The project consists of building a bus 
turn out and sidewalk along US 117 (shipyard Boulevard) from Vance Street to Rutledge Drive in 
Wilmington. Carolina Civil Works, Inc was awarded the $352,590.00 contract September 23, 2019. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The contractor has constructed and completed the Shipyard Bus Pullout federally funded STP 
project.  

• The NCDOT M&T audit will be taking place in the upcoming weeks for the materials closeout 
phase of the supplemental agreement between City of Wilmington and the NCDOT. 

 
U-5534Q –CITY OF WILMINGTON- S. COLLEGE/HOLLY TREE CROSSWALKS 
Project Description/Scope: The project will install sidewalk, ADA ramps, curb and gutter, markings and 
traffic signal revisions required to install actuated pedestrian crossings of S. College Road and crossings 
on Holly Tree Road.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The project has been put on hold until NCDOT’s College Road resurfacing project occurs.  
• NCDOT has indicated that the milling and resurfacing project is now on hold due to the cash 

flow issue, City staff has asked to work with Division in house design to evaluate alternative 
designs that may allow this project to move forward within original scope.   

• If an alternative design is agreed upon that does not significantly affect the original scope of 
the project, the design process will be restarted. 

 
U-5534S (FORMERLY U-5534M)- TOWN OF WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH- CORAL DRIVE SIDEWALKS 
Project Descriptions/Scope: The construction of sidewalks along Coral Drive will install approximately 
954 linear feet of 5 foot wide sidewalk on Coral Drive adjacent to Wrightsville Beach Elementary. The 
Town hired SEPI to complete the design.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps:  

91



• Project is ready for bidding and construction.  Plans and PCE have been approved. The contract 
documents have been approved. 

• The Town will consider requesting additional funds. 
• Anticipated bidding and construction to follow by late summer. 

 
U-5534T –CITY OF WILMINGTON- TRAFFIC SIGNAL PREEMPTION  
Project Description/Scope: This project will install traffic pre-emption equipment at 27 locations 
throughout the City of Wilmington and GPS devices on fire apparatus.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Bid opening was held on August 15, 2019 
• Concurrence of Award has been received 
• Preconstruction Meeting held on 10/7/19 
• Construction began on 11/18/19 
• Equipment has been installed at the intersections and on WFD’s apparatus and vehicles. Should 

be operational by the end of January. Waiting on GTT to provide some training for traffic 
engineering staff and WFD. 

 
U-5534U – TOWN OF NAVASSA- NAVASSA PARK MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description/Scope: This project will construct bike lanes on both sides of Brooklyn Street, a 
multi-use path connecting Brooklyn Street to the Navassa Park, and a multi-use path through the 
Navassa Park forming a loop within the park.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

•   30% Plans submitted to Town December 13, 2019 from PEF.  Town to upload to EBS. 
•   Right-of-Way funding request is anticipated in May 2020 
•   Construction Funding is anticipated in FY2021 

 
EB-6025- TOWN OF BELVILLE- RICE HOPE MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description: The project consists of the construction of a multi-use path of eight feet (8’) wide 
located at the western side of NC 133 between Morecamble Blvd and Rice Hope Run.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The agreements have been executed 
• The Letter of Interest has been published 
• An Addendum has been issued for a 6-month extension on the let date. 

 
U-6234 MULTI-MODAL PHASE 1 B 
Project Description/Scope: Rehabilitation of the historic structure located at 525 N 4th Street for a 
transportation purpose 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 
• The Letter of Interest was advertised on January 13, 2020 
• Consultants expressing interest will submit proposals by February 3, 2020 
 
 
 

92



U-6235 – City of Wilmington/New Hanover County – Signal Pre-emption Phase 2 
Project Description/Scope: The project will install traffic pre-emption equipment at 50 locations 
throughout the City of Wilmington and New Hanover County and GPS equipment on emergency 
response vehicles. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 
• Waiting on agreement amendment from NHRMC before sending to NCDOT for their approval. 
 
U-6236 – WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH – WEST SALISBURY STREET STREETSCAPE 
Project Description/Scope: Streetscape of West Salisbury for approximately a .17-mile section from the 
east side of the Banks Channel waterway bridge through the North Lumina Avenue/West Salisbury 
Street intersection. This project includes sidewalk widening, revised parking spaces, ADA ramps and 
visible, signalized crosswalks, sharrows, additional pavement markings and bicycle racks. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 
• The MPO Board voted to return these funds. 
• A STIP/MPO TIP amendment will be prepared to remove the project 
 
U-6039 – CAROLINA BEACH – ST. JOSEPH BIKE LANES 
Project Description/Scope:  Construct Bike Lanes along St. Joseph Avenue and Lewis Drive from Lake 
Park Boulevard to Access Drive in Carolina Beach 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 
• TIP number has been entered. Town to upload information in EBS to request agreement. 
 
TASA-DA 
 
U-5527B CITY OF WILMINGTON – 5th AVE INTERSECTION UPGRADES  
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for the construction of high visibility crosswalks, curb ramps, 
and pedestrian activated signals on 5th Ave at the Dawson Street and Wooster Street intersections. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps:  

• Under construction 
 
U-5527C NEW HANOVER COUNTY – MIDDLE SOUND GREENWAY – EXTENSION TO MIDDLE SOUND 
VILLAGE 
Project Descriptions/Scope: This project is for the construction of a multi-use path along Middle Sound 
Loop Road from Oyster Lane to the Middle Sound Village property line.  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• R/W Certification received July 1, 2019 
• Utility/RR Cert & Engineers estimate submitted September17, 2019 
• Specifications and final plan comments received 
• Anticipated construction bid opening March 2020 
• Project Completion anticipated in July 2020 
 

EB- 6026- TOWN OF BELVILLE- BELVILLE ELEMENTARY- MULTI-USE PATH 

93



Project Description: The project consists of the construction of a multi-use path of twelve feet (12’) 
wide located along NC 133 connecting north and south entrances of Hawks Water Development to 
Belville Elementary School.  
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The agreements have been executed 
• The Letter of Interest has been published 
• An Addendum has been issued for a 6-month extension on the let date. 

 
EB-6027 – NEW HANOVER COUNTY -MIDDLE SOUND GREENWAY 
Project Description: Design only of the Middle Sound Greenway connection to Ogden Park 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The agreements have been signed  
• PE funds have been authorized 
• SEPI has been approved in EBS as the selected firm- contract signed, Notice to Proceed issued on 

January 14, 2020. 
 
EB-6028 ––CITY OF WILMINGTON- 21ST STREET/MARKET HAWK SIGNAL 
Project Description: Design and construction of a HAWK signal at the pedestrian crossing at Market 
Street and 21st Street  
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• Pre-Design scoping meeting with Davenport Engineering scheduled for first week of February. 
• Provide scope and fee for NCDOT approval and Task order approval.  
• Survey and Design for NCDOT review. 

 
EB-6029 – TOWN OF CAROLINA BEACH – CLARENDON AVENUE MULTI-USE PATH 
Project Description: Construction of the Clarendon Avenue multi-use path from 4th Street to Dow Road 
 
Project Status and Next Steps: 

• The Town is evaluating the scope for the project. 
 
TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  
Project Description/Scope: UNCW is taking the role as lead employer for the Cape Fear region.  The 
WMPO will coordinate with UNCW to work with other major employers in the region to identify 
opportunities for public outreach, marketing, carpooling, vanpooling, alternative/compressed work 
schedules, Emergency Guaranteed Ride Home, park and ride lots, etc. The MPO adopted “Work Cape 
Fear: Expanding Commuter Options in the Cape Fear Region” TDM Short Range Plan on January 28, 2015 
and also authorized staff to apply for a TDM grant through NCDOT that funded a full-time TDM 
Coordinator position.  The Agreement with NCDOT for the full-time TDM Coordinator position was 
approved on November 4, 2015. The TDM program works to increase active transportation initiatives 
and increase community knowledge of commuter options. The MPO finalized the Strategic Marketing 
Plan for the “Go Coast” program. In addition, the WMPO has been working with the City of Wilmington 
to implement a bike share program. The TDM program has continued to grow and progress and below 
are project status and next steps. 
 
Project Status and Next Steps:   
Initiatives 

94



 
1.           Be A Looker Campaign report at GoCoastNC.org 
2.           Bike Share 
a.  New RFP to be released February 2020 
3.           New Go Coast Website 
a.  New website www.GoCoastNC.org live on January 6, 2020. TDM Coordinator posted weekly on 

social media throughout January  to drive traffic to the site. 
4.           Social Media 
a.            Posting at least three times per week on WMPO Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram and Go Coast 

Instagram 
5.           Watch For Me NC 
a.  TDM Coordinator applied for NCDOT’s Watch For Me NC bicycle and pedestrian safety campaign 

for Wilmington with the Wilmington Police Department. 
6.            Applied for Bicycle Friendly Community with the League of American Bicyclists for City of 

Wilmington 
a.            Wilmington was designated a Bronze Level Community in 2015  
7.            Resolution for model ordnance of electric bicycles to come to TCC and WMPO Board in March 
8.           Scooters 
a.   Governor Cooper Vetoed Bill 553 which include regulation of electric stand up scooters 
8.           Writing Short Range TDM Plan  
9.            Begun planning for 31st Annual River To Sea Bike Ride and Bike Month 

10.          Go Coast Bicycle Helmet Grant will work in conjunction with Watch For Me NC to provide 
helmets and lights to WMPO region residents. 
 
 

95



 Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority 
Project Update 
February 2020 

 

REGIONAL AUTHORITY PROJECTS 
1. Bus fleet replacement - Additional funding for four replacement buses has been 

requested from the VW mitigation settlement phase one.  An RFP for funding was issued 
by NC DAQ on June 17, 2019.  The application for funding was released on July 01, 2019.  
An application for four (4) CNG buses was submitted in response to the RFP.  Phase one 
of the VW settlement project awards are expected to be announced in early 2020.     

2. Short Range Transportation Plan - following adoption of Cape Fear Transportation 2040 
by the Wilmington Metropolitan Planning Organization (WMPO), Wave Transit 
completed its latest short range plan in 2018.  The plan will set a course for public 
transportation initiatives, route structure, and revenue programming for the next five 
years.  The plan also includes a financial element to ensure that transit programs are 
compliant with FTA rules and regulations.     
Revenue neutral modifications to Wave Transit routes based on the opening of the 
WMMTC - Padgett Station were implemented on January 18, 2020.  Continued 
investment in recommendations from the plan will be considered based upon available 
funding.   

3. Long Term Funding - currently the Authority does not have a dedicated source of local 
funding.  A consultant led study to evaluate the governing model and long term funding 
for transit in the region was commissioned by the City of Wilmington and New Hanover 
County.  TransPro Consulting presented its findings to the Wilmington City Council and 
the New Hanover County Board of Commissioners in 2018.  One of the 
recommendations from the study was implementation of a dedicated source of funding 
for the Cape Fear Public Transportation Authority. 

 On January 21, 2020 the City of Wilmington and New Hanover County each adopted a 
Concurrent Resolution of the Wilmington City Council and the Board of Commissioners of 
New Hanover County for Enhanced Public Transportation Operations and Efficiency.  
Additional revenue arising from the joint resolution could be utilized to address long 
term funding issues which could lead to more clearly identified and stabilized funding 
for transit in the region.   

 
WMPO SPONSORED PROJECTS   
1. Wilmington Multimodal Transportation Center -  

The Wilmington Multimodal Transportation Center, Laura W. Padgett Station was 
dedicated at 1:00 pm on Friday, January 17, 2020.  Over 100 attended the ceremony 
including federal, state and local dignitaries.   
Transit service from the station commenced on Saturday, January 18, 2020.   The project 
was completed with available revenues and within budget.   

2. STBGP-DA FUNDING FY 2021 

96



On August 07, 2019, the WMPO authorized $500,000 in STBGP-DA funding for 
capitalized preventive maintenance and Americans with Disabilities Act compliance 
funding for FY 2020.  In December 2019, the Authority provided 2,204 ADA passenger 
trips with the allocated funding.  Preventive maintenance activities were undertaken in 
accordance with the appropriated funding. 
 

97



Pr
oj
ec
t M

an
ag
er

TI
P

PO
D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Co

un
ty

RO
W
_

D
el
ay
 (Y

ea
rs
) 

Fr
om

 D
ra
ft
 

RO
W

LE
T_

D
el
ay
 (Y

ea
rs
) 

fr
om

 D
ra
ft
 

CO
N

SA
P 
Le
t D

at
e

Co
m
m
en

t*

M
ik
e 
Ba

ss
U
‐5
71

0A
W
M
PO

U
S 
74

 (E
as
tw

oo
d 
Ro

ad
)‐ 
co
ns
tr
uc
t r
oa

dw
ay
 o
n 
ne

w
 lo

ca
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
U
S 
17

 (M
ili
ta
ry
 

Cu
to
ff 
Ro

ad
) &

 U
S 
74

 (E
as
tw

oo
d 
Ro

ad
)

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

20
4/
16

/2
02

0
Po

st
po

ne
d 
fr
om

 Ja
nu

ar
y 
to
 A
pr
il

Er
ic
 M

ur
ra
y

W
‐5
60

1D
H

W
M
PO

3r
d 
St
 a
nd

 D
oc
k 
St
 In

te
rs
ec
tio

n
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

20
1

7/
17

/2
02

0
Aw

ar
di
ng

 h
as
 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye
d 
1 
ye
ar

Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

R‐
33

00
B

W
M
PO

/C
FR

PO
Ha

m
ps
te
ad

 B
yp

as
s

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er
/ 

Pe
nd

er
IP

20
21

9/
15

/2
02

0

Er
ic
 M

ur
ra
y

W
‐5
70

3C
W
M
PO

M
on

ke
y 
Ju
nc
tio

n 
Pe

de
st
ra
in
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

TB
D

20
21

11
/1
9/
20

20

De
re
k 
Pi
el
ec
h

B‐
45

90
W
M
PO

Re
pl
ac
e 
Br
id
ge
 2
9 
on

 C
or
ne

ilu
s H

ar
ne

tt
 D
r/
Ca

st
le
 H
ay
ne

 R
d 
ov

er
 S
m
ith

 C
re
ek

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

21
1

4/
15

/2
02

1
12

M
LL
 1
 y
ea

r D
el
ay

Er
ic
 M

ur
ra
y

U
‐5
91

4
W
M
PO

W
id
en

 N
C 
13

3 
fr
om

 U
S 
17

/7
4/
76

 to
 O
ld
 R
iv
er
 R
d

Br
un

sw
ic
k

IP
20

20
1

6/
17

/2
02

1
12

M
LL
 1
 y
ea

r D
el
ay

Ce
nt
ra
l

15
bp

r.1
9

W
M
PO

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er
 2
1 
on

 U
S 
76

 o
ve
r B

an
ks
 C
ha

nn
el

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

TB
D

20
22

1
9/
1/
20

21

Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐5
92

6
W
M
PO

N
ew

 R
ou

te
 fr
om

 2
3r
d 
St
 to

 2
6t
h 
St
 

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
20

20
22

6/
21

/2
02

2
PE

 R
es
um

es
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y

Ra
il 
Di
vi
sio

n
P‐
57

40
W
M
PO

W
ilm

in
gt
on

 R
ai
l A

t‐
G
ra
de

 C
ro
ss
in
g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
22

20
23

6/
30

/2
02

2

Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐5
72

9
W
M
PO

U
S 
42

1 
Ca

ro
lin

a 
Be

ac
h 
Rd

 M
ed

ia
n 
w
ith

 in
te
rs
ec
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
t S

hi
py

ar
d 
an

d 
U
S 

42
1

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

23
7/
19

/2
02

2
PE

 R
es
um

es
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y

TB
D

W
‐5
70

3R
W
M
PO

N
C 
13

2 
(S
ou

th
 C
ol
le
ge
 R
d)
 a
nd

 B
ra
gg
s D

riv
e 
tu
rn
 la
ne

s
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
22

20
22

9/
15

/2
02

2

Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

R‐
33

00
A

W
M
PO

Ha
m
ps
te
ad

 B
yp

as
s (
U
S 
17

 fr
om

 M
ili
ta
ry
 C
ut
of
f R

d 
to
 N
C 
21

0)
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er
/ 

Pe
nd

er
IP

20
23

2
9/
20

/2
02

2
M
ik
e 
Ba

ss
U
‐5
71

0
W
M
PO

U
S 
74

 (E
as
tw

oo
d 
Rd

) a
t U

S 
17

 (M
ili
ta
ry
 C
ut
of
f R

d)
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

23
1

9/
20

/2
02

2
PE

 R
es
um

es
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y

Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐3
33

8C
W
M
PO

Ke
rr
 A
ve
 In

te
rc
ha

ng
e 
at
 M

LK
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

23
3

12
/2
0/
20

22
PE

, U
til
ity

 D
es
ig
n,
 a
nd

 A
pp

ra
isa

ls 
Re

su
m
in
g;
 R
O
W
 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
be

gi
nn

in
g 
Ap

ril
 2
02

0 
Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐5
86

3
W
M
PO

N
C 
13

3 
‐  
Ca

st
le
 H
ay
ne

 R
d 
fr
om

 I‐
14

0 
to
 D
iv
isi
on

 D
r

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
21

20
24

10
/1
7/
20

23
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
79

0
W
M
PO

M
on

ke
y 
Ju
nc
tio

n 
In
te
rc
ha

ng
e

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
22

20
24

4/
16

/2
02

4
Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐5
73

1
W
M
PO

U
S 
74

 a
t U

S 
17

/U
S 
42

1 
Fl
yo

ve
r

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
20

20
24

1
5/
21

/2
02

4
PE

 R
es
um

es
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y

Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐4
90

2C
W
M
PO

U
S 
17

 B
us
 ‐ 
M
ar
ke
t S

t M
ed

ia
n 
&
 In

te
rc
ha

ng
e

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

24
4

6/
18

/2
02

4
PE

 R
es
um

es
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y

Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐5
95

4
W
M
PO

N
C 
13

3 
at
 2
3r
d 
St
 R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
22

20
24

6/
18

/2
02

4
Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐4
90

2B
W
M
PO

U
S 
17

 B
us
 ‐ 
M
ar
ke
t S

t M
ed

ia
n 
‐ R

ai
lro

ad
 to

 M
LK

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

IP
20

25
12

/1
7/
20

24
Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐4
43

4
W
M
PO

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 B
ou

le
va
rd
 E
xt
en

sio
n

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
22

20
25

6/
17

/2
02

5
Dr
af
t E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I
m
pa

ct
 S
ta
te
m
en

t C
om

pl
et
ed

Ly
di
a

I‐6
03

8
W
M
PO

I‐1
40

 fr
om

 U
S 
42

1 
to
 U
S7
4/
U
S7
6 
pa

ve
m
en

t r
eh

ab
 

Br
un

sw
ic
k,
 N
ew

 
Ha

no
ve
r

N
/A

20
26

11
/1
7/
20

25
Ly
di
a

I‐6
03

7
W
M
PO

I‐1
40

 fr
om

 U
S 
42

1 
to
 I‐
40

 p
av
em

en
t a

nd
 b
rid

ge
 re

ha
b

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

N
/A

20
26

2/
17

/2
02

6
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
70

2A
W
M
PO

Co
lle
ge
 R
d 
fr
om

 N
ew

 C
en

tr
e 
to
 S
hi
py

ar
d

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
23

1
20

26
1

6/
16

/2
02

6
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
70

4
W
M
PO

U
S 
17

 (O
le
an

de
r)
 a
t C

ol
le
ge

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
23

1
20

26
1

6/
16

/2
02

6
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
79

2
W
M
PO

M
LK
 a
t C

ol
le
ge

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
24

2
20

26
2

6/
16

/2
02

6
Le
t w

ith
 U
‐5
88

1
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
73

2
W
M
PO

/C
FR

PO
U
S 
17

 H
am

ps
te
ad

 M
ed

ia
n 
Pr
oj
ec
t

Pe
nd

er
IP

20
27

4
9/
15

/2
02

6

N
on

e
U
‐6
19

9
W
M
PO

W
ilm

in
gt
on

 C
ity

w
id
e 
Si
gn

al
 S
ys
te
m
 U
pg

ra
de

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

20
27

6/
15

/2
02

7
Kr
ist
a 
Ki
m
m
el

U
‐6
20

1
W
M
PO

Ke
rr
 a
ve
nu

e 
Ex
te
ns
io
n 
fr
om

 W
rig

ht
sv
ill
e 
Av

en
ue

 to
 O
le
an

de
r D

r
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

20
27

6/
17

/2
02

7
Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐5
73

4
W
M
PO

U
S 
42

1 
Fr
on

t S
t W

id
en

in
g

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

2
20

28
3

5/
16

/2
02

8
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
88

1
W
M
PO

Co
lle
ge
 R
d 
fr
om

 G
or
do

n 
Rd

 to
 N
ew

 C
en

tr
e

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

3
20

28
3

6/
20

/2
02

8
Le
t w

ith
 U
‐5
79

2
Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
73

2A
W
M
PO

/C
FR

PO
Da

n 
O
w
en

 C
on

ne
ct
or

Pe
nd

er
20

17
20

19
CS

F 
(N
ow

)
Co

ns
tr
uc
tio

n 
By

 S
ta
te
 F
or
ce
s

Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐6
12

8
W
M
PO

U
S 
76

 (O
le
an

de
r D

r)
 a
nd

 G
re
en

vi
lle
 L
oo

p 
Rd

/G
re
en

vi
lle
 A
ve
nu

e 
Du

al
 L
ef
ts

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
29

PY
PY

Br
ia
n 
Ha

rd
in
g

U
‐6
20

2
W
M
PO

W
id
en

 G
or
do

n 
Rd

 to
 4
 la
ne

s f
ro
m
 U
S 
17

 M
ar
ke
t S

t t
o 
I‐4

0
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

PY
PY

Tr
ac
e 
Ho

w
el
l

U
‐5
70

2B
W
M
PO

Co
lle
ge
 R
d 
Ac

ce
ss
 m

an
ag
em

en
t i
m
pr
ov

em
en

t f
ro
m
 C
ar
ol
in
a 
Be

ac
h 
Rd

 to
 S
hi
py

ar
d 
Bl
vd

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

20
25

PY
1

PY

Pr
oj
ec
t i
s o

n 
ho

ld
D
at
e 
Co

m
pl
et
ed

:
2/
4/
20

20
Ex
ce
pt
io
n 
G
ra
nt
ed

PO
:

W
M
PO

Su
sp
en

sio
n 
Li
ft
ed

Co
nt
ac
t:

Ca
itl
in
 M

ar
ks

91
0‐
34

1‐
20

00
cm

m
ar
ks
@
nc
do

t.g
ov

Pr
oj
ec
ts
 in

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

98



Co
nt
ra
ct
 N
um

be
r

Re
si
de

nt
TI
P/
W
BS

/P
ro
gr
am

Co
un

ty
D
es
cr
ip
tio

n
Es
tim

at
ed

 
Co

m
pl
et
io
n 

Pe
rc
en

t 
Co

m
pl
et
e

Co
m
m
en

t
DC

00
21

8
Ad

am
 B
rit
t

N
/A

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Sn
ow

 C
ut
 (#

30
) o

n 
U
S 
42

1 
ov

er
 S
R 
15

32
 F
ed

er
 re

pl
ac
e

Fe
b‐
20

92
.8
4%

DC
00

27
4

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

N
/A

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er
 H
ur
ric

an
e 
Pi
pe

 R
ep

la
ce
m
en

t (
G
ro
up

 E
)

M
ar
‐2
0

41
.0
6%

Av
ai
la
bi
lit
y:
 Ja

nu
ar
y 
6,
 2
02

0

C2
04

28
2

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

15
40

3.
10

65
02

7
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Br
id
ge
 o
n 
U
S 
42

1 
ov

er
 F
ish

in
g 
Cr
ee

k 
4 
m
ile
s N

 o
f I
‐1
40

Ju
l‐2

0
63

.2
7%

DC
00

25
4

Ly
di
a 
M
cK
ee

l
R‐
57

83
C/
D

Br
un

sw
ic
k,
 D
up

lin
, N

ew
 

Ha
no

ve
r, 
O
ns
lo
w
, P

en
de

r, 
Sa
m
ps
on

20
19

 T
AP

 C
ur
b 
Ra

m
p

M
ay
‐2
0

69
.3
6%

DC
00

23
1

Da
ni
el
 Jo

ne
s

R‐
36

01
(L
)

Br
un

sw
ic
k

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 
fo
r t
he

 D
iv
er
gi
ng

 D
ia
m
on

d 
at
 U
S 
74

/7
6 
an

d 
N
C 
13

3
Ju
n‐
20

87
.2
4%

DC
00

26
8

TB
D

I‐5
76

0A
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

I‐1
40

 fr
om

 I‐
40

 to
 U
S 
42

1 
O
pe

n 
G
ra
te
d 
Fr
ic
tio

n 
Co

ur
se

Au
g‐
20

0%
Av

ai
la
bi
lit
y:
 M

ar
ch
 2
, 2

02
0

C2
04

20
3

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

HV
BP

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Is
ab

el
 H
ol
m
es
 B
rid

ge
 (#

11
, U

S 
74

) G
ird

er
 re

pa
ir,
 u
pg

ra
de

 p
ai
nt
/s
tr
uc
tu
ra
l 

st
ee

l, 
re
pl
ac
e 
gr
id
 fl
oo

r
M
ar
‐2
1

34
.2
3%

DC
00

26
5

TB
D

N
/A

k,
 D
up

lin
, N

ew
 H
an

ov
er
, P

en
de

r
Lo
ng

 L
in
e 
Pa

ve
m
en

t M
ar
ki
ng

N
ov

‐2
1

0%
Av

ai
la
bi
lit
y:
 Ju

ne
 1
, 2

02
0

C2
03

98
0

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

U
‐4
75

1
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

M
ili
ta
ry
 C
ut
of
f R

d 
Ex
te
ns
io
n 
fr
om

 M
ar
ke
t S

t t
o 
th
e 
W
ilm

in
gt
on

 B
yp

as
s 

w
ith

 a
n 
in
te
rc
ha

ng
e 
at
 th

e 
By

pa
ss
 

Ap
r‐
22

28
.2
3%

C2
04

31
9

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

U
‐4
90

2D
N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Su
pe

rs
tr
ee

t m
ed

ia
n 
on

 M
ar
ke
t S

t (
U
S 
17

 B
U
S)
 fr
om

 M
ar
sh
 O
ak
s D

r t
o 

Le
nd

ire
 D
r

N
ov

‐2
2

12
.7
5%

TB
D

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

HV
BP

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Ba
nk

s C
ha

nn
el
 (#

21
, U

S 
76

) g
ird

er
 re

pa
ir,
 c
le
an

 a
nd

 p
ai
nt
 b
ea

rin
gs
, e
po

xy
 

ca
ps

TB
D

TB
D

TB
D

Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

HV
BP

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Ca
pe

 F
ea

r (
#4

8,
 I‐
14

0 
E)
 S
he

ar
 S
tr
en

gt
he

n
TB

D
TB

D
TB

D
Al
ex
 S
te
w
ar
t

HV
BP

N
ew

 H
an

ov
er

Ca
pe

 F
ea

r (
#4

9,
 I‐
14

0W
) S

he
ar
 S
tr
en

gt
he

n
TB

D
TB

D

Pr
oj
ec
ts
 U
nd

er
 C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n

99



Co
nt
ra
ct
 

N
um

be
r

Co
nt
ra
ct
 

Ye
ar

Co
un

ty
Re

si
de

nt
TI
P

M
PO

/R
PO

M
ap

Ro
ut
es

Es
tim

at
ed

 
Co

m
pl
et
io
n 

Pe
rc
en

t 
Co

m
pl
et
e

C2
04

13
5

20
18

w
 H
an

ov
er
/B

ru
ns
w

Ly
di
a 
M
cK
ee

l
N
/A

W
M
PO

0
U
S 
42

1/
U
S 
76

/N
C 
13

2 
an

d 
va
rio

us
 S
Rs
 (N

ew
 H
an

ov
er
 R
es
ur
fa
ci
ng

)
Fe
b‐
20

68
.6
5%

Re
su
rf
ac
in
g

100



 

 

 

  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

ROY COOPER  JAMES H. TROGDON, III 
GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 
 

 
    

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING BRANCH 
1554 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH NC  27699-1554 
 

Telephone: (919) 707-0900 
Fax: (919) 733-9794 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 
 

Website: www.ncdot.gov 

Location: 
1 SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET 

RALEIGH, NC  27601 
 

 
 

February 2020 
 
Nazia Sarder 
Transportation Engineer 
NCDOT Transportation Planning Division 
1 South Wilmington Street 
Raleigh, NC 27601 

 
FEBRUARY TPD UPDATES WILMINGTON MPO 

 
FEBRUARY 2020 

 
 
Brunswick County Model: The engineers and modeler are waiting for clarification on one 
FY project. Once this information is provided, the modeler and engineers will create the FY 
network and run the model.  
 
Wilmington Model: Most recently, the TPD engineer and modeler have asked the MPO 
clarification on some FY projects. The MPO has provided the information requested by TPD 
and the modeler and engineer are reviewing that information.   
 
NCMOVES 2050: Phase III of the NC Moves 2050 project is looking at what the 
transportation system will need in the future. It divides these needs into 10- and 30- year 
time spans. The phase consists of three tasks: Future Needs, Priorities, and Solutions. 
 
2020 NC Transportation Summit: On January 8-9, experts from around the world shared 
their insight about new technologies and ways of thinking regarding the future of North 
Carolina’s transportation system. Sign up for the NCMoves 2050 newsletter for continuous 
updates. Contact Nastasha Earle at NCDOT’s Transportation Planning Division to sign up.  
 
Public Comment Opportunity for Future NCDOT Division 3 projects: NCDOT Division 
3 is encouraging area residents to provide input on what transportation projects they would 
like to see included in the NCDOT’s 10-year transportation plan for 2023-2032. A 30-day 
public comment period to submit project ideas will be held between January 27-February 28. 

101

http://www.ncdot.gov/


There will also be a three-day open house held at the NCDOT Division 3 office. Please 
contact Caitlin Marks with NCDOT’s Division 3 for further information.  

Watch for Me NC Seeks Partners for 2020: The 2020 Watch for Me NC safety program is 
accepting applications until January 31. The program focuses on bicycle and pedestrian safety, 
education and enforcement.  

Traffic Forecast Updates: in the Wilmington MPO Area, here are some TF updates: 

1. U-4738 Brunswick New Hanover Cape Fear Crossing 40114.1.2; TIP: U-4738;
Assigned to: HNTB; Due date/status: Paused

2. H172105 New Hanover Piner at Grissom Roundabout H172105   34263.1.1;
Assigned to: TPD Staff; Due date/status: February 21, 2020

102


	2-26_Board Agenda
	Proposed Revisions to STIP-MTIP_Modifications _January 2020_20_1_REVISED
	2019-1_Resolution_modifying_STIP (20-1)
	Section 5310 Award
	Resolution_supporting the allocation of Section 5310 funds
	Interlocal Software Usage Agreement - RideShark - Wilmington MPO
	1.  Authorized End Users.  Upon execution of this Agreement by a Stakeholder, that Stakeholder shall become an authorized end user of the Software and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Contract.
	2.  Representations and Warranties.  Each Stakeholder represents and warrants to each and every other Stakeholder that it has the requisite authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, that the execution and delivery of this Agreement does not co...
	3.  Covenants.  Each Stakeholder agrees to comply with the following covenants:
	(a) A covenant not to reverse compile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer all or any part of the Software;
	(b) A covenant not to copy, reproduce, modify, adapt, translate or add new features to the Software without the express written consent of GoTriangle;
	(c) A covenant not to permit disclosure of, access to, or use of the Software by any third party unless authorized in writing by GoTriangle;
	(d) A covenant that the Proprietary Information (as defined in the Contract) is owned by GoTriangle or GoTriangle has the applicable rights of use and such Stakeholder will maintain the Proprietary Information in strict confidence and not disclose the...
	(e) A covenant to not disclose or permit disclosure of the personal information of the public that accesses the sites supported by the Software including, but not limited to, email addresses of the public.  Stakeholders shall only communicate with the...

	4.  Limitation of Liability.  GoTriangle does not give any warranty with respect to the Software, or the maintenance or support services to be provided by RideShark with respect thereto, including no warranty concerning whether such Software or servi...
	5.  Indemnification.  Each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) hereby agrees in the manner and to the extent provided by NCGS 143-291 et seq., to defend each other Party (the “Indemnified Party”) against, for, and hold each Indemnified Party harmless from, ...
	6.  Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one year, unless terminated earlier by the written agreement of all Stakeholders.  This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional periods of one (1) year until GoTriangle and RideSha...
	7.  Liaison.  Each Party shall designate a liaison who will be responsible for coordinating the use of the Software and the provision of the services described by this Agreement and the Contract. The initial liaison for each Party is set forth in Sch...
	8.  Amendments; Additional Parties.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in writing signed by the Parties hereto and specifically referring to this Agreement.  Any amendment effected in accordance with this section shall be binding...
	9.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within the State of North Carolina, without regard to conflicts of laws or choice of laws princi...
	10.  Notices.  Any notices which any Party hereto is required or desire to give the other hereunder shall be deemed to have been properly given for all purposes if (a) delivered against a written receipt of delivery, (b) mailed by registered or certi...
	11.  Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, and their respective heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns.  No waiver by any Party hereto of any default shall be deemed as a waiv...

	RideShark-GoTriangle Contract 19-019
	Resolution_GoCoast and Share the Ride NC with GoTriangle
	Resolution_TDM Grant_FY21
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

	Wilmington_DRAFT_PWP FY2021_ 1-10-20
	Resolution_RivertoSeaRide_Parcitipants Cap DRAFT_MK
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

	Proposed Revisions to STIP-MTIP_Modifications _January 2020_20_2
	P6.0 Aviation Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 BikePed Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Draft Public Transportation Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Rail Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Roadway Projects_2020-02
	TCC TAC Update 02 20
	2020.02 - WMPO
	WMPO February 2020
	Wilmington MPO February Update.pdf
	2_2020-TCC_Agenda
	2020-01-15_TCC_Minutes
	Proposed Revisions to STIP-MTIP_Modifications _January 2020_20_1_REVISED
	2019-1_Resolution_modifying_STIP (20-1)
	Section 5310 Award
	Resolution_supporting the allocation of Section 5310 funds
	Interlocal Software Usage Agreement - RideShark - Wilmington MPO
	1.  Authorized End Users.  Upon execution of this Agreement by a Stakeholder, that Stakeholder shall become an authorized end user of the Software and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Contract.
	2.  Representations and Warranties.  Each Stakeholder represents and warrants to each and every other Stakeholder that it has the requisite authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, that the execution and delivery of this Agreement does not co...
	3.  Covenants.  Each Stakeholder agrees to comply with the following covenants:
	(a) A covenant not to reverse compile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer all or any part of the Software;
	(b) A covenant not to copy, reproduce, modify, adapt, translate or add new features to the Software without the express written consent of GoTriangle;
	(c) A covenant not to permit disclosure of, access to, or use of the Software by any third party unless authorized in writing by GoTriangle;
	(d) A covenant that the Proprietary Information (as defined in the Contract) is owned by GoTriangle or GoTriangle has the applicable rights of use and such Stakeholder will maintain the Proprietary Information in strict confidence and not disclose the...
	(e) A covenant to not disclose or permit disclosure of the personal information of the public that accesses the sites supported by the Software including, but not limited to, email addresses of the public.  Stakeholders shall only communicate with the...

	4.  Limitation of Liability.  GoTriangle does not give any warranty with respect to the Software, or the maintenance or support services to be provided by RideShark with respect thereto, including no warranty concerning whether such Software or servi...
	5.  Indemnification.  Each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) hereby agrees in the manner and to the extent provided by NCGS 143-291 et seq., to defend each other Party (the “Indemnified Party”) against, for, and hold each Indemnified Party harmless from, ...
	6.  Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one year, unless terminated earlier by the written agreement of all Stakeholders.  This Agreement shall automatically renew for additional periods of one (1) year until GoTriangle and RideSha...
	7.  Liaison.  Each Party shall designate a liaison who will be responsible for coordinating the use of the Software and the provision of the services described by this Agreement and the Contract. The initial liaison for each Party is set forth in Sch...
	8.  Amendments; Additional Parties.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in writing signed by the Parties hereto and specifically referring to this Agreement.  Any amendment effected in accordance with this section shall be binding...
	9.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within the State of North Carolina, without regard to conflicts of laws or choice of laws princi...
	10.  Notices.  Any notices which any Party hereto is required or desire to give the other hereunder shall be deemed to have been properly given for all purposes if (a) delivered against a written receipt of delivery, (b) mailed by registered or certi...
	11.  Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, and their respective heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns.  No waiver by any Party hereto of any default shall be deemed as a waiv...

	Resolution_GoCoast and Share the Ride NC with GoTriangle
	Resolution_TDM Grant_FY21
	WILMINGTON URBAN AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

	Wilmington_DRAFT_PWP FY2021_ 1-10-20
	P6.0 Aviation Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 BikePed Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Draft Public Transportation Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Rail Projects_2020-02
	P6.0 Roadway Projects_2020-02
	Wilmington MPO Project Update_February 2020_MPO
	TCC TAC Update 02 20
	2020.02 - WMPO
	WMPO February 2020

	P6.0 Memos and Maps_021920.pdf
	P6.0 Aviation Projects_2020-02
	Aviation
	P6.0 BikePed Projects_2020-02
	BikePed
	P6.0 Rail Projects_2020-02
	Freight
	P6.0 Draft Public Transportation Projects_2020-02
	PublicTrans 1
	PublicTrans 2
	PublicTrans 3
	PublicTrans 4
	P6.0 Roadway Projects_2020-02
	Roadway




